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W E L C OM E  T O  M IG H T Y  R I V E R  P OW E R ’ S  2 0 0 2
Annual Report. The board hopes you find it interesting and

informative, and welcomes your comments on any aspect of it.

This report demonstrates the strong commercial focus Mighty

River Power has as an electricity generator and retailer which

produces around 14 percent of the country’s electricity for our

280,000 customers.  Most of that energy comes from renewable

resources – hydro and geothermal – with the balance coming

from methane gas recovery stations and a high efficiency gas-

fired co-generation plant at Auckland.  Our eight hydro dams

on the Waikato River are our core physical assets. The

environments in which they and our other generation stations

are located are special to many people as well as to us, and we

take very seriously our custodian/guardianship mandate and

the impacts of our activities in those unique locations. This

year’s report features Natalie Robertson’s striking photography

of people and places within the Taupo/Waikato region. Last

year’s award-winning report included similarly impressive

photography by Patrick Reynolds. On our website you can 

see many more images of the people, places and events 

that are part of who we are and what we do. Without the

commitment, enthusiasm and skills of our people, the

achievements of Mighty River Power in 2002 would not have

happened. This report is an acknowledgement of that special

effort by each one of them.

W A I K A T O  R I V E R  

O F  A  H U N D R E D
T A N I W H A

R O B  C H A L L I N O R
on behalf of the board

C H A I R M A N  
Mighty River Power Limited 



Net surplus after
taxation of $47.1m
achieved in a year
where hydrology
significantly limited
electricity production.
Operating cashfow
strong at $77.9m.

Mercury Energy
established as the
premier retail
electricity brand in 
the upper North Island
and now offering both
electricity and gas
supply.

Mighty River Power 
the leading New
Zealand owner 
and operator of
methane gas recovery
generation.

Release of the
company’s first
sustainability report,
‘An Intricate Balance’.
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Group debt reduced 
by 13 percent to
$462.1m with
equity/total assets ratio
improved from 44.2
percent to 
51.5 percent.

Increasing network 
of relationships 
and understandings 
with Taupo and 
Waikato iwi and 
with many other 
local organizations
focused on
conservation,
recreational activities,
education and
community support.

Enhanced business
efficiency evident 
in the operating 
surplus result which 
is higher than two 
years ago when over 
7 percent more
electricity was
produced.

Mercury Energy 
the only electricity
company to directly
reward customers for
energy savings they
made during 2001
winter with total
payments of over $2m.
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In last year’s 2001 annual report (available on our

website www.mightyriverpower.co.nz), we described

in some detail Mighty River Power’s core business,

its performance for the financial period ending 30

June 2001, and the activities underlining our

environmental and social commitment. For Mighty

River Power, 2001 was a landmark year in which we

consolidated our position as a manager of renewable

and sustainable energy resources, and as one of New

Zealand’s leading energy companies.

Although our results a year ago were pleasing, it

was a demanding year operationally. We were closely

involved in the development of industry initiatives 

to address complex energy issues and in the debate

on critical changes facing the electricity sector. 

We also made an explicit commitment to the 

concepts of sustainable development, accepting 

the responsibility to manage our business to achieve

high performance across social, environmental and

economic goals. 

HYDROLOGY
The 1 July 2001 – 30 June 2002 year being reviewed

in this report, was a very different year for Mighty

River Power. In July 2001, the single feature 

that dominates Mighty River Power’s economic

performance—natural hydrology—was at an extreme

low. South Island hydro lakes had experienced 1 in

70 year low inflow characteristics which left

national reservoirs well below normal levels and

the country facing increased risks of shortages in

energy supply. Wholesale energy prices were

reaching levels not seen since 1991. Inflows into the

Taupo/Waikato catchments during mid-winter

2001 were also at extreme lows, with Taupo storage

at winter’s end near to minimum levels. Intensive

public education advertising encouraging people 

to conserve electricity, and world-leading initi-

atives such as Mercury Energy’s Beat Your Bill

campaign, ensured critical 2001 winter demand was

able to be met. 

That was the challenging start to the trading year.

As the year progressed, hydrology became less of an

issue until this year’s autumn period when growing

national energy demand and low catchment inflows

again signalled potential pressure on energy

availability. However, Mighty River Power was

comfortably able to meet its supply commitments

and by early July, the Taupo/Waikato catchments

were experiencing some of the heaviest inflows since

the high-flow events of 1998.  The 2002 financial

year has, from a hydrology perspective, ended at

almost the opposite end of the water storage supply

curve from which it began 12 months earlier.

This volatility over the trading period had a

marked impact on our annual result. An energy

business like Mighty River Power is always going 

to experience variability in revenues through its 

use of natural resources (predominantly hydro) 

to generate electricity. Unpredictable weather

patterns that change production volumes can 

have a significant direct effect on short-term 

financial performance.

PERFORMANCE
The previous two years have demonstrated our

organizational ability to achieve sound results

despite poor hydrological conditions. This year’s

performance again highlights the importance of

building our resilience to fundamental business

uncertainties by establishing clear strategic

objectives that determine our day-to-day

operational focus across everything from fuel 

(water) management right through to meeting the

expectations of our customers. We also need 

to ensure we have the people who are best able to

utilise sophisticated business planning tools and

processes to make optimum use of available water.

This report provides sound evidence of our ability 

to do this now and in the future. 

Set out on the next page are graphs which show

actual and target business results for Mighty River

Power across a number of key financial indicators.

Because we experienced heavily reduced (17 

percent below the long-term average) inflows 

for 2001/2002, revenues were below plan and return

on shareholders’ equity was likewise reduced.

However, cashflows remained strong and the 

key target ratio of free funds from operations 

to interest expense was only marginally below 

plan, with our primary balance sheet indicators

slightly ahead of target. 

J O I N T  R E P O R T  O F  C H A I R M A N  A N D  C H I E F  E X E C U T I V E
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

Most readers of this report will want to know as

much about where we are going as about what we

have done over the past 12 months.  The dynamism

and rapid change that are features of modern

business mean that those with a current interest in

Mighty River Power also want to know how the

organisation sees itself in the future, and what 

its capacity is for responding to the opportunities

and the challenges that lie ahead. That’s why 

this report has a bias toward the future direction 

of the company and the commercial rationale for

its objectives.

Our business plans for 2002/2003 and the two

years following have a strong focus on six key areas.

We will:

• Protect and improve future revenue and

maximise contributions from renewable fuels by

reinvesting in core operating assets.

• Increase the overall level and quality of earnings

and cashflows.

• Achieve financial ratios similar to our  industry

peers in order to effectively compete for new

generation opportunities.

• Invest in new geothermal and other generation

initiatives to add value to the group’s generation

portfolio.

• Build on Mercury Energy’s position as a national

retailer with a strong brand focus in the upper

North Island.

• Progressively increase the level of distributions

to shareholders.

Even when we achieve the performance

improvements necessary to meet these goals, the

company’s financial results will continue to be

influenced by weather patterns. 

Continuously enhancing the risk management

processes established when the company was first

formed in 1999 will be a crucial factor, as it was

this year, in limiting the impact of adverse climatic

effects on business performance.

Our sustainable geothermal and high efficiency

co-generation power stations can provide 

some balance for the supply uncertainties of 

a natural hydro resource.  In fact, the company’s

generation portfolio is closely representative 

of the country’s overall mix of hydro, geothermal,

gas-fired and alternative plants.

FINANCIAL
The group’s operating surplus before interest,

taxation and non-recurring items (“operating

surplus”) for the year was $87.2 million ($103.9

million in 2001), which was 22 percent below plan.

This was a direct result of inflows into Lake Taupo

being 13 percent below last year and even further (17

percent) below the long-term catchment average.

Actual hydro generation was 3494 gigawatt hours

(GWh). Based on historical records, this annual

production level is normally  expected to be exceeded

in seven out of eight years. Given the hydrological

restrictions over the period, the results achieved are

a positive reflection of the company’s active risk

management strategies and our increasingly

efficient utilisation of available hydrology.

Against this adverse hydrological background, the

group was able to reduce debt over the 12 month

period by $67.8 million to $462.1 million, a

reduction of 13 percent. This debt reduction was 

a result of shareholders’ support for strengthening 

the group’s balance sheet by retaining funds 

in the business and of the company’s strong 

operating cashflows.

Key Comparative Information

Sales including line charges were $767.8 million

($839.9 million in 2001). Overall operating

revenue was down 8 percent at $595.1 million

($646.7 million in 2001).  The revenue decrease

reflects both reduced electricity production,

Financial year ending 30 June

2000 2001 2002

Hydro Generation Volumes GWh 3,777 4,006 3,494

Change from Prior Year % +6 -13

Retail Sales Volume GWh 5,706 5,513 4,204

Change from Prior Year % -3 -24

Operating Surplus $M 82.4 103.9 87.2

Change from Prior Year % +26 -16
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particularly through the first half of the year, and

also the substantial planned reduction in Mighty

River Power’s retail sales over the period. This

reduction was a managed consequence of the

agreement concluded in June 2001 with Natural

Gas Corporation, which reduced Mighty River

Power ‘s annual electricity purchase commitments

by more than 1000 GWh. Overall customer

numbers were steady at 279,000 (284,000 in 2001)

reflecting continuing success in the retail market.

In the previous financial year, an increase in

hydrology of 6 percent over 2000 and a decrease 

in retail sales of 3 percent resulted in operating

surplus improving 26 percent over the prior

period. This trading year has seen retail sales

reduced by a further 24 percent, and hydro

generation sales 13 percent lower. The significance

of the commercial strategies put in place in 1999

and 2000 is evident when the results for the 2000

and 2002 trading years are compared. Although

hydro volume was down 7 percent and retail sales

were down 26 percent, operating surplus levels

were improved compared with 2000. We are very

pleased with this result, which is an outcome of our

focus on value creation rather than market share.

In an industry sector where the risk-weighted

incremental costs are typically higher than average

costs, market share focus has been value-

destructive for many energy industry participants

internationally and in New Zealand. Operating

surplus is a key indicator of performance and our

2002 results indicate that the economic value of

the group is growing.

Reduced hydro generation, together with

additional tax payments and the high level of non-

recurring non-cash items in 2002, led to a

decrease in operating cashflow to $77.9 million

(compared to $110.3 million in 2001), which was

nevertheless an improvement on the 2000 result

($68.5 million).  Reduced profits also resulted in a

fall in the return on average shareholders’ equity

from 8.6 percent in 2001 to 6.4 percent in 2002.

Net surplus before taxation at $67.3 million

($76.7 million in 2001) included a non-recurring

gain of $8.0 million arising from the release

of provisions established to meet potential

liabilities transferred from Electricity Corporation

of New Zealand (ECNZ).

The company’s overall net surplus after 

taxation was $47.1 million, compared with $59.1

million in 2001 and $41.3 million in 2000. The net

surplus improvement in 2002 over 2000 (despite

significantly lower hydro volumes) reflects our

commercially driven strategy to unlock Mighty River

Power’s value as a niche generator / retailer.

Shareholders’ equity increased from $712.9

million to $760.0 million, strengthening the 

equity to total assets ratio from 44 percent to 

51 percent.

Given the strong correlation between catchment

rainfall and our operating performance, this year’s

results were always going to reflect the low water

storage position at the beginning of the financial

year and the heavily reduced inflows over the first

part of the period.

In those circumstances, we are very satisfied

with these results. They bear the hallmarks of a

commercial approach to asset utilisation and to 

our increasingly efficient use of the water in 

the Taupo/Waikato hydro system. Achieving an

operating surplus figure that is higher than the

operating surplus result two years ago, when we

produced over 7 percent more hydro electricity, is

a big move forward in an industry where business

efficiency gains are usually measured in much

smaller increments.

We also believe that the underlying strength 

of these results provides good evidence of 

the sustainability of the company’s capacity to

generate strong earnings over the long-term.

Stakeholders interested in our company’s financial

capability will look well into the future when they

assess Mighty River Power's business strength.

The 2002 results, and the manner in which they

were achieved in difficult hydrological conditions,

demonstrate that our active focus on risk

management and value creation is a fundamental

part of how we operate the business. These results

should provide some confidence that we have the

right mix of attitude, aptitude, assets and people to

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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deal with market, shareholder and community

expectations of the likely quality of our future

business performance.

BALANCE SHEET STRENGTHENING
Last year, our shareholders supported a focus on

strengthening the balance sheet and agreed with

the board that funds should be retained in 

the business and no dividend paid. This year’s

stronger balance sheet and capital structure will

(as outlined in last year’s Statement of Corporate

Intent) enable the board to support a dividend to

shareholders of $11.8 million, representing 25

percent of the 2002 net surplus after taxation.  The

payment of the dividend will be confirmed by 

the board in accordance with the requirements 

of the Companies Act 1993 before payment 

to shareholders in October this year. This

distribution will not impair the company’s ability

to undertake opportunities to grow shareholder

value into the future, and the Statement of

Corporate Intent anticipates increasing dividend

payments over the next three-year planning

period.  As it must do, the board will continue to

take a prudent approach to dividend policy that 

will be driven by actual business results and a 

clear focus on maintaining and enhancing Mighty

River Power’s sustainable development over the

medium to long term.

BUSINESS INITIATIVES
Other business initiatives during the reporting

year included:

• The acquisition of Natural Gas Corporation’s

46.5 per cent interest in the 3 MW Silverstream

methane gas recovery power station, which has

resulted in the company’s interest increasing to

93 percent and the landfill owner (Hutt City

Council) holding the balance of the venture.

Mighty River Power is now the leading methane

gas recovery plant owner and generator in the

country and has interests in other similar

operations at Greenmount and Rosedale in

Auckland.

• No longer supplying the system operator with

some of the various ancillary services it requires

to maintain the operation of the national

electricity system. Such supply commitments

have previously limited Mighty River Power’s

capacity to perform as a peak demand energy

supplier. Retaining the flexibility to decide

when and how to utilise our generation assets to

meet peak demand has added significant value

above the return achievable in the past by

providing ancillary services to the system

operator.

• The sale of the Metrix time-of-use metering

business reflected our view that to grow value in

this market required an owner which was

independent from energy retailing and was 

able to provide capital for the technology

advancements needed to extend the business.

In the commercial contracts market, the

separation by other retailers of meter ownership

and energy retailing would lead to lower costs 

for customers.

During the year, we obtained significant benefits

from last year’s strategic transaction securing a

long-term contract for differences with NGC

relating to some of the output from the Taranaki

Combined Cycle power station at Stratford. 

This transaction enabled the company to exit

significant business risks transferred in 1999 

to Mighty River Power from its predecessor

organisation and will provide positive returns and

increased business flexibility over the long term.

A key part of our business which has undergone a

major transformation over the reporting period, is

our retail group.

MERCURY ENERGY
As we outlined in last year’s annual report, our

retail energy activities are channelled through two

brands, Mercury Energy and First Electric.

Mercury Energy’s performance over the past two

years has been dominated by four major factors:

• Significant growth in areas adjacent to the

Auckland City area in which Mercury Energy has

operated for over 70 years. This growth, based

on brand reputation and awareness, took place

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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in West Auckland, North Shore and Rodney

District where customers appreciated the service

benefits offered by Mercury Energy, including a

10 percent prompt payment discount, and an

additional 2 percent discount for electronic

payment which was launched in 2002.

• Introduction of monthly meter reading to

provide customers with accurate bills, which has

led to a reduction in the number of inquiries to

our call centre.

• Expansion of Mercury Energy’s involvement

into areas north of Taupo (Waikato, Bay of Plenty

and Northland) following a transaction with

TrustPower which saw 20,000 customers 

coming under the Mercury Energy brand. This

recognised the additional longer-term benefits

able to be provided to these customers by Mighty

River Power because of its strong regional

presence.

• Marked improvement in business processes and

customer service delivery after the serious system

dysfunction and poor service levels that permeated

the electricity industry in 1999 and 2000.

The successful completion of our back office

computer systems and the rebuilding of customer

service processes, are seen in substantially improved

leading indicators such as the reduced number of

customer call-centre contacts, and the first-time,

error-free customer switching ratio now being very

close to 100 percent. These process improvements

have helped us to achieve significant reductions in

temporary and contract staff, and have flowed

through as reduced operating costs for the period.

A strategic review of our retail business led 

to the decision to withdraw First Electric 

from Wellington and Christchurch. Originally

established in 1998 by  ECNZ as a cut-price supply

option at a time when ECNZ produced over 60

percent of New Zealand’s electricity, First Electric

was not able to meet its customers’ service and

price expectations in a newly configured retail

market characterised by price and supply volatility,

tight margins and the increased costs associated

with different use-of-system contracts and tariff

structures required by many (often very small)

network companies.  Our review concluded that the

ECNZ model for First Electric was economically

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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unsustainable in the new market structure.

TrustPower saw the opportunity to lift its retail

presence in Wellington and Christchurch and with

First Electric’s 20,000 customers, it achieved

sufficient scale to provide better services and

increased competitiveness for consumers in both

places.  We are reviewing how we can best service

our remaining First Electric customers who are

predominantly located north of Taupo. Since

balance date, we have announced a 10 percent

prompt payment discount similar to the payment

option available to Mercury Energy’s customers.

Mercury Energy continues its strong

performance as a full service premium brand and

will continue to offer to customers a range of new

products and services. Mercury recently offered gas

supply and electricity on the same bill (Mercury

Duo) to some Auckland customers.  The new service

delivered on the Mercury brand promise of

meeting customers expectation of “ease” and there

are plans to expand the Duo service to a wider range

of customers in 2003.  Other new services include

electronic on-line billing.

Mercury’s strong community support platform

included the Starship National Children’s Hospital

and the Auckland Domain Concert series.  In the

coming year, Mercury’s community support will

also focus on Starship’s Heart Fund campaign. 

GEOTHERMAL

The 25MW geothermal power station at Rotokawa,

commissioned in late 1997, has had another

outstanding year based on production levels 

and industry standards of performance. The

improvement in operational performance since

the plant was acquired early in 2000, is a clear

example of our geothermal capability.

A 20 percent capacity expansion at Rotokawa is

now likely to be available by the start of calendar

2003, earlier than anticipated. Extending the

country’s geothermal production capacity makes

good sense from a number of perspectives:

• It is not as dependent as hydro on day-to-day

weather patterns.

• Typically geothermal stations operate to a

constant production profile and provide a base-

load complement to the peaking capacity

characteristics of the company’s predominant

hydro generation production.

• Because of their scale relative to other forms of

generation, geothermal projects have a low

concentration  of investment risk and (subject to

the resource consent process), can be relatively

quick to market.

• Geothermal projects are a renewably-based,

sustainable generation option with a significantly

better greenhouse gas emission profile than

fossil-fuel-based electricity production.

• Their location in the central North Island places

them close to where much of the country’s future

economic growth is expected to take place.

Tauhara North No.2 Trust is our business partner at

Rotokawa. We are exploring ways with Trust

representatives to further extend the partnership for

mutual benefit.  Positioning Mighty River Power as

the Trust’s preferred joint venture partner provides a

number of challenges and opportunities as we

endeavour to build on our track record with them. 

We also aim to become the preferred development

partner for other owners with access to geothermal

resources. The way we conduct business, and the

views and values that we share, will be important in

determining our success. We share with our partners

the fundamental view that future geothermal

development must be sustainable over the long term,

and that commercial benefits should be shared fairly.

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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At Mokai, we continue to operate and maintain the

55MW geothermal plant on behalf of the Tuaropaki

Trust.  This is another recently established plant that

is operating very well and has significant future

development possibilities. These opportunities 

are also being closely investigated, and early

indications are that they will enable the Trust and

Mighty River Power to increase future electricity

production from the Trust’s Mokai geothermal

resources. Currently, a 39MW expansion is being

considered for completion before 2005.

We are confident that the national benefits of

geothermally produced electricity, our partnership

approach, and our strong operational track record,

will put us in a favoured position to establish new

geothermal production projects in other North

Island locations within the Volcanic Interior Zone.

RESOURCE CONSENTS
Mighty River Power’s resource consent applications

for continued operation of the Taupo/Waikato

hydro scheme were a strong focus throughout the

year.  Our 2001 report outlined in some detail the

technical and consultative processes that we have

been involved in, and how these opened up the

company to its catchment communities.  Hundreds

of public meetings have been held, and thousands

of pages of reports, letters and technical analyses

have been produced, to ensure we leave no material

aspect of the Resource Management Act process

unconsidered. It has been a huge undertaking,

reflecting the critical importance to the company,

to the region and to New Zealand, of continuing 

to optimise the flexible operation of the Taupo/

Waikato hydro scheme.

As we reported last year, the full capacity of the

hydro system continues to be essential in ensuring

security of supply to the country as a whole and

particularly to the upper North Island.  Our ability

to fully contribute to New Zealand’s increasing

demand for peak supply throughout the year means

that our hydro production exerts strong competitive

pressure on peak prices which is vital at times 

of high demand. Flexibility in water resource

utilisation is a crucial factor in providing that

competitive tension. There is a natural alignment of

interest between Mighty River Power’s business

goals in relation to the hydro system and the

interests of consumers who are seeking lower

prices and reductions in the national emission 

of greenhouse gases associated with fossil-fuel

energy production.

Establishing the terms upon which a natural

resource user like Mighty River Power can access

the water resources of Lake Taupo and the Waikato

River for the next 35 years is a complicated and, at

times, passionate process.

We understand the need to hear, consider and

attempt to reconcile complex research, and a

diversity of community attitudes and information,

to ensure that we are providing the best overall

outcomes for our local, regional and national

communities, and for Mighty River Power.  That is

both the mandate that we acknowledge and the

standard that we try to meet.  The relatively small

changes that we are seeking to our current

operating conditions will have significant benefits

for New Zealand as the Maui gas field runs down.

We are confident that the research undertaken by

some of New Zealand’s foremost experts across

geomorphology, aquatic biota systems and other

natural processes, means that the commissioners

who will hear our applications, and the submitters

who have a special interest in them, have access to

the best available information. We acknowledge

that the correct outcome is going to be one 

that balances all the interests that are active in

relation to the river. Achieving this intricate

balance is our objective.

A lesser outcome will result in a reduced

contribution from Mighty River Power to the

country’s growing energy requirements, greater

national emissions of greenhouse gases, the

likelihood over time of higher electricity prices 

for homes and businesses, and a reduction in 

our capacity to participate in our Taupo and

Waikato communities.

We expect our applications for resource  consents

to continue operating the Taupo/Waikato hydro

system to be heard towards the end of this 

calendar year. 

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2



12

Hydro plant availability in 2001/2002 again

exceeded target for the period.  Unplanned outage

performance was primarily driven by an extended

outage of one unit at Arapuni in 2001. The low

hydrology conditions in 2001 and the operating

flexibility of our generation plant meant there was

virtually no resulting impact on earnings.

AN INTRICATE BALANCE
This year saw the publication of our first

sustainable development report, An Intricate

Balance. An expression of our corporate values

and personality, it signals that for Mighty River

Power and its people, the concepts supporting

sustainable development are central values. The

triple bottom lines of economic, environmental

and social performance make explicit the inter-

relationship of these elements, and establish 

the range across which the full influence 

and impacts of the company’s business activities

are felt.

Our commitment to the principles of sustainable

development are evolving. For many years, the

company’s corporate predecessors adopted and

supported environmental and community values

that, measured against the backdrop of those days,

were early evidence of good intent. Significant

environmental and social changes occurred 

with the construction of the hydro dams 

at Aratiatia, Ohakuri, Atiamuri, Whakamaru,

Maraetai, Waipapa, Arapuni, and Karapiro. 

Today, we are involved in projects that actively

protect and support the cultural beliefs that are

central to tangata whenua.  Initiatives that include

helping to permanently record the cultural

knowledge held by those now growing old, have

shown the value that cultural preservation has for

iwi as they face the challenge of keeping their

strong and unique place in the New Zealand of the

future. As well, these records are also part of 

the history of this country, and preserving that

history and the foundation of those beliefs 

for future generations of Maori and all New

Zealanders, fits comfortably with our broad

commitment to long-term sustainability.

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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The natural lake environments that have built 

up over the past 50 years or more since dam

construction, have become a seamless part 

of today’s landscape in the Waikato. River

environments have been replaced by small lakes

where fishing, sailing, boating, rowing and other

sporting and recreational activities now take place.

One of our principal sponsorships, Rowing New

Zealand, would not have its world-class training

and regatta facilities at Lake Karapiro were it not

for the dam built at that location.

Although many elements of our particular form

of sustainability have been in place for some 

time, the modern framework for sustainable

development in Mighty River Power provides an

exciting opportunity for the company to chart its

future progress. The opportunity is to improve 

our performance not only across conventional

financial measures, but also across a broader

economic range, and to do that alongside 

superior environmental, community and social

performance. It is about building our economic,

natural and social capital contributions, 

and doing so with the highest standards of 

ethical corporate conduct, full, open and honest

communication, and with strong community

support for everything we do.

Set out on pages 44 and 45 are some of the

community organisations and events supported by

Mighty River Power.

PEOPLE
Last year’s annual report depicted the journey of

the Waikato River from its mountain source to the

sea and located Mighty River Power firmly within

the landscape in which it operates. This year our

report features some of the people whose

individual insights and contributions to their

communities show personal perspectives that tell

not only their own stories, but also part of ours.  We

acknowledge and thank each of them for being part

of this report.

The overall strength of our 2002 business 

results is good evidence of Mighty River Power’s

capacity to produce sound commercial outcomes 

in a period where low hydro inflows temporarily

limited the extent to which we could meet 

growing national energy demand as the renewably-

based, peak demand electricity supplier to the

upper North Island.

We are confident that the organizational changes

made toward the end of the reporting period will

give additional impetus to our value creation focus

and to our strategic business development.

We have strengthened our senior management

team to reflect our focus on generation

development opportunities, particularly in

geothermal.  Our success in attracting skilled 

New Zealanders returning from overseas, as well 

as those from other countries, supports and builds

our reputation as a leading energy company. The

addition of talented people who bring global

experience to the business has already delivered

fresh perspectives into our core business.

The strong teams that underpin each of these

changes provide significant new capacity to lift the

future performance of the business and to make 

it an attractive employment destination for other

skilled New Zealanders with broad commercial

experience.

This financial year has seen the appointment of

two new directors to the board of Mighty River

Power. Tania Simpson, who has a background 

of broad involvement across a number of

environmental, organizational development and

iwi-related matters, was appointed in November

2001.  Sandy Maier, who has strong national and

international banking and commercial experience

and is a well-known New Zealand business

professional, was appointed in April this year.  The

increased board membership represents a very

good balance of experience and knowledge across

the range of skills required for effectively

overseeing the governance and strategic direction

of Mighty River Power.

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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THE FUTURE
It will come as no surprise that the board and management are optimistic and excited about Mighty River

Power’s future prospects as one of the country’s leading energy companies. We have identified a number of

short and long-term opportunities, all within New Zealand, where we believe that the company can

continue its strong progress across the spectrum of sustainable development. Although some major

uncertainties remain to be resolved for the electricity industry, not the least of which is its governance and

operational framework, we are confident that Mighty River Power has the resilience to prosper within

whatever industry structure is established.

We have spent much time and effort this year concentrating on three key “abilities”.

The first is “renewability”, which refers not only to our core business of electricity generation from

renewable hydro and geothermal resources but also to our organizational capacity for change in order to

achieve high performance goals.

The second is “sustainability”, and refers to the commitment we have made to all of our stakeholders –

our communities, our people, our customers, shareholders, suppliers and all those affected in some real

way by what we do. That commitment is to improve our performance as an efficient business using

renewable resources to responsibly meet the country’s demand for energy. We will do so with careful regard

to the place we occupy in our social and natural environments.

The third ability is “capability” - the package of skills, commitment, attitudes and values represented in

every one of our own people. Everything we achieve depends on that ability – it will determine the extent of

our success in the future.

R O B  C H A L L I N O R

Chairman

D O U G  H E F F E R N A N  

Chief Executive
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Bill Galvin (Ngati Tahu-Ngati Whaoa) was born on the

Waikato River at Orakei-Korako. So was his mother, and

many of their tupuna (ancestors).  Associations going back

hundreds of years make Orakei-Korako a place of special

importance to many tangata whenua. Bill’s remarkable

memory and ability to recount stories of the people and

events of the past quickly build for listeners, strong images

of the communities that once populated the area. So much

has changed since those days and, like kaumatua elsewhere,

Bill feels a strong duty to help preserve for future gen-

erations, the cultural beliefs and values that underpin the

unique identity of his hapu. Together with Te Runanga O

Ngati Tahu - Ngati Whaoa under the chairmanship of Rawiri

Te Whare, Bill has been a central figure in a project

resourced by Mighty River Power to permanently record the

detail of events, places, images and achievements of his 

iwi. “This record, and the values and beliefs it embodies,

will help our rangatahi (young people) in particular to

better know who they are, where they have come from, and

why particular attitudes and principles are part of their

identity. I can’t help being optimistic about the future,

when I see the opportunities that are available for our

people.  I believe it is very important that we proudly carry

forward into the future the mana of our past and of all those

who have gone before.”

P R E S E R V I N G  A

U N I Q U E  I D E N T I T Y
B I L L  G A L V I N
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When the trout are running, you’ll find Vivienne Olsen

wading in one of Taupo’s cold, clear streams, casting her

line and waiting to reel in a fighting rainbow or brown trout

which has taken the fly. Vivienne, a participant for 25 

years in the annual Taupo International Trout Fishing

Competition, sponsored, by Mighty River Power, this year

bagged her winning fish from the Hinemaiaia Stream. “It

was the best fish caught by a lady angler on the fly.  It was

very well-conditioned, not old, spent and slabby,” she says.

“Fly fishing is magic.  It’s very invigorating just being out on

the river. We are so lucky.” The sustainability of trout

fishing is highly dependent on good management of the

catchment, Lake Taupo and the fish resource itself. This

year, Mighty River Power established a postgraduate

environmental scholarship to support research into factors

that may affect fishing in the region. Trout populations 

may have declined over the years, but Vivienne says there

are still plenty of fine fish to be caught. “This year, there was

a three-bag limit and I caught a fish every day. I think 

this environment and the fish resource is managed

wonderfully, and it’s good to see companies actively

supporting the community’s recreational activities.”

T H E  M A G I C  O F

F L Y  F I S H I N G
V I V I E N E  O L S E N
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V A L U I N G

O U R  W E T L A N D S

The lush dairying pastures of the Waikato are linked to the

reduction of the region’s wetlands, resulting in the

increased scarcity of a number of native plants and animals.

Although less than a third of Waikato’s wetlands now

remain, the region has fared better than many others and

still includes internationally significant peat bogs at

Whangamarino and Kopuatai. Chairman of the National

Wetland Trust David Lawrie and Trustee Beverley Clarkson

know that the fate of these remaining areas rests with 

public education and the support of organisations like 

Mighty River Power. The company has made a practical

commitment to assisting wetland restoration and river

enhancement.  Each wetland has its special characteristics

and species that rely on a delicate environmental balance –

such as the tiny purple flowered orchid Corybas carsei which

survives at only one site in the Waikato. With improved

management of the habitat, the population has recovered

from only 40 plants a few years ago to more than 200 now.

Such successes are heartening for the fledgling National

Wetland Trust which is building an information and

research centre near State Highway 1 at Rangiriri. “These

are amazing places,” they say.  “But very few people have

ever been into the middle of a peat bog.  Better appreciation

of wetlands is something the National Wetland Trust is

committed to achieving.”

D A V I D  L A W R I E  &  B E V E R L E Y  C L A R K S O N







D A P H N E  C O T T O N
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T H E  H E A R T  O F

T H E  D A M  C O U N T R Y

A tiny wooden cottage on Mangakino’s main street houses

an intriguing history of the town and surrounding districts.

Daphne Cotton’s Historical Archive is a lasting tribute to

those who settled in the area, built dams, and broke in the

hard pumice country for farming. Her bulging files of

newspaper clippings hold hours of fascination for those

with an interest in the dam country heartland. Daphne

began collecting old photographs, books and clippings

when she settled in Mangakino district some 35 years ago.

Today, her hobby is a passion  which enriches the lives of

many who visit the archive.  Her collection documents the

history of the then remote communities at Mangakino,

Marotiri, Mokai, Oruanui, Tirohanga, Whakamaru, and

Taupo. “People like to reflect on the past.  It affects them in

many different ways,” says Daphne. “By connecting with

our history, it helps us to understand the present and this

makes all our lives more meaningful. Mangakino was 

a boom town when the hydro development was in full swing

– we had New Zealand’s largest secondary school. Our

numbers have dwindled now, but our history is no less

relevant because of this.  It’s important to remember the

great contribution those people made.”

D A P H N E  C O T T O N
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G E O T H E R M A L  T A O N G A

I N T R U S T  A T M O K A I

In 1946, Tuaropaki Trust Chairman Sam Andrews was just a

lad of 21 when kaumatua of seven hapu of Ngati Tuwharetoa

and Ngati Raukawa gathered at their Marae Pakaketaiari to

decide on the future use of their 20,000 acres of land at

Mokai. At the turn of the century Mokai was a thriving

timber mill town. But by 1945, the timber was depleted and

when the three mills closed, 1600 jobs were lost.  The elders

decided to develop the land for farming, which began in

1952 under the supervision of the then Department of

Maori Affairs.  In 1979, the land was handed back debt free

to the owners, who had formed into the Tuaropaki Trust.  In

1982, the Ministry of Works drilled some exploratory holes

on the land to assess its geothermal energy potential.  “It

was an exciting venture into the unknown and amazing

when the field proved to be of commercial value,” says Sam.

With good professional management and technical support,

and a strong focus on the long term, the Trust backed its

own ability to develop the field. It selected a plant with the

capacity to recycle steam and brine to provide additional

generation and invited Mighty River Power to partner with

the Trust in operating and maintaining it. “We have a

terrific opportunity at Mokai to create and build the

economic power of our people by applying the concepts of

continuous sustainability to our commercial operations.

Maori look upon geothermal resources as taonga which

must be respected and used in ways which benefit Maori

now and in the future.”

S A M  A N D R E W S



S A M  A N D R E W S
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L I V E S  S H A P E D  B Y

T H E  L A N D S C A P E

There’s a lookout on Ghezzie Road where the leisurely

reaches of the mighty Waikato River spread across the flood

plain below. The sun brushes the toi toi, glances off the

water and picks out the duck shooters’ mai mais on the

ribbons of land which lace together the river’s banks.  This

landscape has shaped the lives of four generations of the

Egan family since 1864. Their Waiuku dairy farm has given

them their livelihood and the lower reaches of the Waikato

River some of their best and most memorable times.  Con

Egan and his son Patrick come from a family with a strong

tradition of game-bird hunting. “The best time to go duck

shooting is at dusk”, says Con, “when a strong, wet westerly

unsettles the birds.  This is when the greys and mallards

head inland looking for cover.  When it’s fine and calm, the

ducks fly high and out of range.” Over the years, Con has

seen a few changes on the river. The removal of riverbank

willows and draining of wetlands have reduced duck

numbers.  And the days when shooters could build a rough

hut anywhere on the banks of the river have ended.  But Con

reckons the duck shooting is still as good as ever. “ When I

was young, I’d shoot from an old wire-wove platform up in

a willow tree down by the river. These days, I just go down to

my farm pond on the Otaua Creek. For all the changes, the

lower Waikato’s still a magic place. When the ducks are out

of season, there’s always the white-baiting and the

scalloping on our back doorstep. It’s not a bad life, eh?”

C O N  &  P A T  E G A N
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T H E  M A N A  O F

T H E  M O U N T A I N

Ted Tauroa dreams of his descendants a hundred years from

now walking over the bush-clad slopes of Maungatautari,

his spirit by their side.  This is part of his vision to restore

the mana of the mountain bestowed to the Ngati Koroki-

Kahukura people by Tainui Kingitanga. Maungatautari 

was a source of sustenance for his tupuna and many found 

their final resting place on the mountain. But over the 

past century, as land ownership changed and farming

intensified in the area, hapu became less able to protect 

the mountain.  Land clearing and introduced pests have 

all taken their toll on native flora and fauna. The

Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust, supported by

landowners, local authorities and businesses like Mighty

River Power, is a way of turning back nature’s clock. The

Trust plans to construct a predator-proof fence to protect

the mountain and help restore the forest and the life within

it. For Ted, the Trust embodies the kaitiakitanga (the

caregiving role) of his people and will ensure that Ngati

Koroki-Kahukura can play their part in looking after the

mountain and restoring it for the future. “Maungatautari

has so much to offer future generations. If we work hard

now to help restore it to its former glory, all New Zealanders

will have something very special right here.”

T E D  T A U R O A





ARTS

2002 Lake Taupo Arts Festival

2002 Taupo Arts Awards

AWARDS

Electricity Supply Industry Training
Organisation Annual Awards – 
“New Entrant of the Year”

Institute of Professional Engineers
of New Zealand – Environmental
Sustainability Awards

Waikato Federated Farmers –
Waikato Sharemilker of the Year

COMMUNITY

2002 Waikato Technofest 

James Cook High School 

Karapiro Primary School 

Mangakino Christmas Parade

Pukeatua School

Taupo Lions Club – 
National Convention April 2002

ENVIRONMENT

2002 Festival of the Environment
(Waikato)

Lake Taupo Promotional
Association - Taupo 
Environmental Scholarships 

Lower Waikato River 
Enhancement Society 

Maungatautari Ecological 
Island Trust 

New Zealand Parks and
Conservation Foundation

National Wetland Trust 

River Action Focus Team

Taupo Environmental 
Disaster Relief Unit

Taupo Nui-A-Tia College – 
Youth Environment Summit 

Waikato River elver (eel) 
capture and transfer

ECONOMIC

B2H – Business to Hamilton

Innovation Waikato

INDUSTRY LINKED
CONFERENCES AND
SUPPORT

Institute of Engineers – 
2001 Conference

Investing in Partnerships –
Sustainability Conference 

New Zealand Geothermal
Association Annual Conference

Wind Energy Conference

HIGH PERFORMANCE

Ironman New Zealand 

New Zealand Rowing Academy

New Zealand Rowing
Championships

RECREATION

Cambridge Yacht Club Winter
Yachting Series 

Karapiro Rowing Inc - safety boats

Lake Taupo Yacht Club 
Centreboard Regatta

Lake Taupo Volunteer Coastguard 

Lake Taupo International Trout
Fishing Competition 

Pairere Waterski Club

Taupo Sea Scouts - safety boat

Te Awamutu Fish and Game
Competition 

Waipa District Council – 
Karapiro / Arapuni safety boat 

Yachting New Zealand Olympic 
Youthsail Regatta (Lake Taupo)

C O M M U N I T Y  S U P P O R T
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SOCIAL SUPPORT

Auckland City Mission

Habitat For Humanity

Parentline Waikato

Rotary Golf Fundraising Classic 

Salvation Army (Waikato)

Stewart Centre (Waikato)

Volunteer Service Abroad

Waikato Surnise (Hamilton Rotary) 

TOURISM

Aratiatia Rapids (releases)

Taupo Bungy 

YOUNG PEOPLE

Auckland/Waikato Special
Children’s Christmas Party

Barnados

Books in Homes 

Canteen - Child Cancer Society 

Hamilton Junior Naturalists

Hamilton Lions Magical Show 
for needy kids 

Project K 

The Gifted Kids Programme

The Mind Matters Charitable Trust

IWI

Ngati Tuwharetoa

Waikato Tainui 

Ngati Raukawa

Ngati Tahu-Ngati Whaoa

LAKE AND RIVER EVENTS

Arapuni Lake Users 

Atiamuri Waterski Club

Auckland University Canoe Club

Balloons Over Waikato 

Fish and Game, Eastern Region 

Karapiro Users Group 

Karapiro Rowing Inc 

Lake Whakamaru Christian Camp 

Manukau Canoe 
and Adventure Club 

Nga Tai Whakaronga 

NZ Freestyle Kayak Committee 

NZ Grand Prix 
Hydroplane Drivers Club 

Piarere Waterski Club 

Rollos Marine (Bridge to Bridge)

Rapid Sensations 

Taupo Dive Club 

Te Toki Voyaging Trust 

Turangawaewae Waka 
Regatta Committee

Waikato Region of 
NZ Barefoot Waterski Club

Waikato Tournament 
Water Ski Association 

Waikato Waterski Association

Waipa Delta 

Weet-Bix Kiwi Kids triathlon 

Whitewater Slalom NZ 

Young Mariners of NZ 

Lord of the Rings (access 
to Aratiatia Rapids)

MERCURY ENERGY
SPONSORSHIPS

Christmas in the Park

Symphony in the Park

Starship Foundation

Lighting Auckland Landmarks

45
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Rob Challinor, chairman, served as
a director of Electricity Corporation
of New Zealand from 1992 to 1998.
He was chairman of the Waikato
Interim Development Group, set up
in 1998 to determine the viability of
the proposed Waikato state-owned
enterprise arising from the planned

break-up of ECNZ early in 1999.  He has been chairman  
of the Mighty River Power board since the company began
business in April 1999. He has been a partner in an
international accounting firm and has worked as a
merchant banker.

Mr Challinor is a partner and director of investment
bankers Northington Partners. He is a director of The
Warehouse Group, Ports of Auckland and international
strategy consultancy L.E.K Consulting’s Australasian
Advisory Board. He is also chairman of human 
resource consultancy Sheffield Limited and a Fellow of 
the Institute of Directors.

Carole Durbin is deputy chair and
chair of the audit committee of the
board and has held both positions
since the company began trading in
April 1999.  She spent nine years on
the board of Transpower, the last
few years of that time as its deputy
chair. She has in-depth experience

and understanding of the industry across transmission,
generation and distribution.

She is a partner of law firm Simpson Grierson. In
addition to providing legal advice, she acts as a mediator 
and arbitrator in commercial disputes.  She is an advanced
panel member of Lawyers Engaged in Alternative
Disputes Resolution and a Fellow of the Arbitrators’ 
and Mediators’ Institute and is one of the Metering 
and Reconciliation Information Agreement panel of
arbitrators. She is also a Fellow of the Institute of
Directors and a commissioner on the board of the
Earthquake Commission. 

Ian Fraser has a comprehensive
background in engineering and
engineering management, and is a
director of Beca Group (Ltd), 
the largest New Zealand-owned
consulting engineering company.
Mr Fraser manages the southern
region for Beca Group and currently

is president of the Association of Consulting Engineers 
of New Zealand and a member of the NZ Institute of
Building Registered Construction Managers’ Board. 
He was a director of Mighty River Power when it began
operations in April 1999.

Sandy (Samford) Maier has worked
in international commercial and
investment banking with Citicorp/
Citibank for fifteen years in 
various management positions in
the Caribbean, South America and
Australasia. He has lived and
worked in New Zealand since 1986,

serving on the board of the Bank of New Zealand and 
as the statutory manager of DFC New Zealand Limited, 
for which he received a 1990 Commemoration Medal for
services to New Zealand. For the past ten years, he has
had his own international management consulting firm
specialising in strategic financial and human resource
issues. He has served as chief executive and board
member of a number of companies, and has been a
director of Mighty River Power since April 2002.

David McConnell’s commercial
background has been in business
development. 

He is currently joint managing
director of McConnell International,
which includes related companies
McConnell International Property,
Steelpipe NZ, Hawkins Construction,

HGM Group, and Bisleys Environmental.  He is a trustee of
Competitive Auckland which focuses on promoting the
business competitiveness of Auckland City, and a trustee
of the planned Manukau Pacific Events Centre. Mr
McConnell has been on the board of Mighty River Power
since it began business in April 1999.

T H E B O A R D
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Tania Simpson was appointed as a
director of Mighty River Power in
November 2001 and is the founding
director of Maori policy adviser,
Kowhai Consulting Limited.  She is
of Ngati Maniapoto and Ngati Manu
descent and lives in the Maniapoto
district. She has previously held

management positions in Housing Corporation, Ministry of
Maori Development and Office of Treaty Settlements and
has worked on social policy, economic development and
Treaty-related matters.  Tania Simpson is a member of the
Medical Laboratory Technologists’ Board, a Trustee of Te
Kura Kaupapa Maori O Oparure and is on the Committee
of Te Kopua Marae.

Wayne Walden was appointed a
director of Mighty River Power in
June 2001 and has had more than 30
years experience in New Zealand’s
retail and wholesale sectors. Most
recently, he was managing director
of Farmers Deka Limited. He is 
the deputy chairman of Meat New

Zealand and the recently appointed chairman of TranzRail.
Mr Walden is also founding chairman of Project K,
established seven years ago to support youth development
programmes for at-risk teenagers.

Hilary Webber is a dairy farmer
from Cambridge with broad
experience in strategic and financial
management, energy and public
policy.  Mrs Webber has been an
elected director of the NZ Dairy
Group.  She has also served as a 
NZ Dairy Group delegate on the

Livestock Improvement Council and has been on the
boards of Glencoal Energy and NZ Dairy Foods. She 
is currently a non-executive director of Ag Research 
and its subsidiary Celentis – the commercial arm of Ag
Research involved in biotechnology and commercialisation
of research.

Mrs Webber has been a director of Mighty River 
Power since it began operating in April 1999.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors have pleasure in presenting the

annual report and financial statements of Mighty

River Power Limited for the year ended 30 

June 2002.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that

the financial statements comply with generally

accepted accounting practice and give a true and

fair view of the financial position of Mighty River

Power Limited and the group as at 30 June 2002

and of the financial performance and cashflows for

the year ended at the same date.

The directors consider that the financial

statements of the company and the group have

been prepared using appropriate accounting

policies, consistently applied and supported by

reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all

relevant financial reporting and accounting

standards have been followed.

The directors believe that proper accounting

records have been kept which enable, with

reasonable accuracy, the determination of the

financial position of the company and the group

and that the financial statements comply with the

Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The directors consider they have taken adequate

steps to safeguard the assets of the company 

and the group to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities.

After consultation with the company’s

shareholders, the directors support payment 

of a dividend in respect of the year ended 30 

June 2002. The dividend will be confirmed 

in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act 1993.

The Audit Office is required to be the

company’s auditor and it has appointed Mr G A

Fulton of Ernst & Young to undertake the audit on

its behalf.

D I R E CTO R S ’  R E P O R T
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The board of directors is responsible for the

corporate governance of the company. Corporate

governance means the direction and control of the

business by the directors and the accountability of

directors to shareholders and others for the

performance of the company and its compliance

with laws and standards applicable to it. This

summary sets out the corporate governance

policies, practices and processes followed by the

board throughout the year.

ROLE OF THE BOARD
The board is responsible for the overall direction

of the Mighty River Power group’s business 

and other activities on behalf of the shareholding

ministers.

The principal objective of the company and its

subsidiaries (together the group) is to operate as a

successful business and to be:

(a) as profitable and efficient as comparable

businesses that are not owned by the Crown;

(b) a good employer i.e. an employer operating

personnel policies which contain provisions

generally accepted as necessary for the fair and

equitable treatment of employees in all aspects

of their employment;

(c) an organisation that exhibits an informed

sense of social responsibility by having regard

to the interests of the communities in which

the group operates;

(d) a leader in achieving the objectives of

sustainable development for the communities

in which the group operates through world’s

best management of hydro and geothermal

resources.

The board establishes the policy framework in

which the group’s business is conducted and it

monitors management’s performance within this

context. The board has delegated day to day

leadership of the company to the chief executive.

In discharging its duties, the board requires

management to prepare a business plan of 

the current year and the ensuing two years and

an annual budget which sets out the company’s

capital and operational requirements within

the plan.

The board monitors actual financial results

compared to plan and forecasts on a monthly basis.

The board’s responsibilities also include

identifying and controlling the group’s business

risks, the integrity of management information

systems and reporting to shareholding ministers.

Major policies which are subject to the board’s

approval and review include capital investment,

treasury, electricity trading and risk management,

accounting and financial, insurance and delegated

authority limits.

The board recognises the importance of full

compliance with laws controlling environmental

activities, the management of natural resources,

health and safety in employment and working

conditions within buildings. The board monitors

the company’s compliance with the statutes that

are relevant to its business through regular reports

from management.

The performance of directors, and the board

collectively, is considered through a detailed self-

assessment and peer review process. Directors are

also encouraged to attend regular governance

training workshops and other skills-based

learning opportunities.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP
The board comprises eight non-executive directors

and all appointments to the board are made by the

shareholding ministers in accordance with Section

36 (1) (a) (i) of the Companies Act 1993.

The company’s constitution requires that its

directors be appointed to the board for a fixed term

not exceeding three years. Further details about

each director are set out on pages 46 and 47 of 

this report.

To assist directors to carry out their duties, 

the board has two standing committees, audit and

remuneration.  

C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The full board has met 11 times during the year.

The board’s annual programme is settled by the

chairman in conjunction with the chief executive.

Directors receive papers for consideration and

regular management reports in advance of

meetings. Executives are regularly involved in

board discussions and directors have other

opportunities, including visits to operations, to

make contact with a wider group of employees. In

consultation with the chairman or chief executive,

directors are able to access information directly

from management.  

For the year ended 30 June 2002, attendance at

board meetings was as follows:

Rob Challinor 11

Carole Durbin 11 

Ian Fraser 11

Sandy Maier (from April 2002) 3

David McConnell 11

Tania Simpson (from November 2001) 8

Wayne Walden 10

Hilary Webber 11

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
The function of the audit committee is to assist the

board of directors in fulfilling its duties and

responsibilities with regard to the establishment

and continued effectiveness of the company’s

policies, practices, procedures and systems of

internal control.  The committee also reviews the

performance of the internal and external auditors.

The audit committee comprises Carole Durbin as

chair, Ian Fraser, Hilary Webber, Tania Simpson

and Rob Challinor as ex officio member. It has met

four times during the reporting period.

All directors are invited to attend its meetings

and are provided with copies of meeting minutes

and reports received by the committee.

Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee’s primary role 

is to consider detailed recommendations and

policies concerning remuneration for the group’s

employees including the chief executive. The

remuneration committee members are Rob

Challinor as chairman, David McConnell, Sandy

Maier and Wayne Walden. The committee met once

during the reporting period.

Review of Auditor Independence
During the year the board reviewed the company’s

relationship with the delegated auditor of the

financial statements, Mr G.A. Fulton of Ernst &

Young.  The board’s review confirmed the present

audit arrangements and noted that there was no

need to change them. The board has policy on

auditor independence which places responsibility

for managing the relationship with the audit

committee, and which includes defining the scope

of services provided to the group by Mr Fulton and

Ernst & Young.

INDEPENDENT ADVICE
Where the board considers it appropriate to do so,

directors can request independent professional

advice at the company’s expense to assist them 

to carry out their duties as directors. No such

request for advice has been made during the

reporting period.

COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY 
AND CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL
DONATIONS
The company sponsors events and organisations

conferring a community benefit. In addition the

company makes charitable donations from time to

time.  These initiatives are managed according to

an agreed policy and are reported to the board.  

The company has a policy of making no

donations to political parties.

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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Doug Heffernan
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Doug was appointed Chief Executive
in December 1998. Previously, he
was Chief Executive of Power New
Zealand Limited, from 1991 to 1997,
leading it through corporatisation,
merger and stock exchange listing.

He has also assisted governments on policy development,
provided strategic advice to the electricity industry and
performed a number of governance roles within the
sector. His senior management responsibility has
extended across all parts of the electricity value chain.

Colleen Cann
ORGANISATION DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

Colleen joined the company early in
1999 to assist in its formation. 
She has extensive experience in
change management in both public
and private sectors in the United
Kingdom and New Zealand. During

the 1990s, Colleen led the organisation change processes
for the largest privatised electricity distribution company.

Tim Densem
GENERAL MANAGER GENERATION ASSETS

Tim recently joined Mighty River
Power as General Manager
Generation Assets following senior
managerial roles in New Zealand
and Australia.  In Australia, he had
responsibility for developing and

implementing strategies for a $2 billion gas and electricity
infrastructure business through merger and market
deregulation to achieve substantial improvements in
performance. His current role is to ensure the
sustainable, safe, efficient and reliable operation of the
company’s hydro, geothermal and methane recovery
plants.

John Foote
GENERAL MANAGER RETAIL

John is responsible for retail
operations which supply nearly
280,000 customers. He has over 
10 years’ experience in general
management roles in the electricity
sector, and previously held the

position of Chief Operations Manager with Power New
Zealand Limited. Prior to joining the electricity industry,
John was involved in the construction industry, which
included significant international experience.

Tony Gray
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

Tony joined Mighty River Power in
September 1999 following previous
roles at Tourism Holdings Limited
and as Chief Financial Officer at
Television New Zealand. He was
closely involved in TVNZ’s business

development in the 1990s including the investments in
SKY Network Television, Clear Communications, Teamtalk
and Asia Business News (now CNBC). He has held
directorships in all of these companies. His background
provides an extensive mix of experience in both the private
and state-owned enterprise sectors.

Mike Kedian 
GENERAL MANAGER GENERATION RESOURCES

Mike is responsible for the company’s
stewardship of its renewable fuel
resources, primarily Taupo-Waikato
hydro and the geothermal business.
Formerly Generation General
Manager, his new role signifies the

importance Mighty River Power places on its long-term
commitment to work closely and carefully with the greater
Taupo/Waikato community and the natural environment in
which the company operates. He also leads the company’s
approach to sustainable development.

E X E C U T I V E  M A N A G E M E N T
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Stuart Lush
GENERAL MANAGER GENERATION DEVELOPMENT

As General Manager Generation
Development, Stuart is responsible
for the development of new
generation opportunities with a
focus on our strategic position in the
use of sustainable and renewable

energy resources. Stuart has extensive experience in 
the electricity and construction industries, particularly
in relation to the commercial realisation of development
opportunities.

James Moulder
GENERAL MANAGER TRADING

James’ role is to optimise the
company’s generation portfolio
within the wholesale market,
consistent with defined risk
management policies. James joined
Mighty River Power following

experience in financial markets and strategic and
financial consulting work in the Australian energy sector.
He brings extensive business experience in managing
risk, commodity trading and financial management, both
in New Zealand and Australia.

William Meek
ENTERPRISE RISK STRATEGIST

William is responsible for over-
seeing the integrated risk positions
of the company with a particular
focus on electricity and risk
tolerance parameters. This includes
developing value - enhancing 

strategies within the company’s financial capability. He
has 10 years experience in the New Zealand electricity
industry including electricity wholesale markets, price
forecasting, strategy and risk management. 

David Reeve
INDUSTRY STRATEGY MANAGER

David has a broad range of
experience in the electricity
industry, including transmission
and distribution, over a 20-year
period. His roles have included
maximising the efficient and com-

mercial operation of the company’s hydro generating
activities on the Waikato River. David is responsible 
within Mighty River Power for providing strategic 
oversight and organising technical support to the various
governance processes currently taking place in the
electricity industry.  

Bruce Waters
LEGAL COUNSEL & CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Bruce has had significant, broad
commercial experience in the
forestry and fishing industries and
in legal practice.  In his role as Legal
Counsel and Corporate Affairs, 
he guides the company’s Resource

Management Act and planning submission strategies,
public policy, and relationships with central government
and iwi. He is responsible for addressing issues in relation 
to litigation and contract negotiation, recreation and
community strategies, and public relations and media
communication.
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To the readers of the financial statements of Mighty River Power Limited and Group for the year ended 30 June 2002.

We have audited the financial statements on pages 54 to 82.  The financial statements provide information about the

past financial performance and financial position of Mighty River Power Limited and Group as at 30 June 2002.  This

information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 59 to 65.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 and the Financial Reporting Act 1993 require the Board of Directors (the

Board) to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand that

give a true and fair view of the financial position of Mighty River Power Limited and Group as at 30 June 2002 and the

results of operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and Section 19(1) of the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 require the

Auditor-General to audit the financial statements presented by the Board.  It is the responsibility of the Auditor-

General to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and report that opinion to you.

The Auditor-General has appointed G A Fulton, of Ernst & Young, to undertake the audit.

Basis of Opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements.  It also includes assessing:

•    the significant estimates and judgements made by the Board in the preparation of the financial statements; and

•  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to Mighty River Power Limited and Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards published by the Auditor-General, which

incorporate the Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand.  We planned and

performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to

provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.  In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of

the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Other than in our capacity as auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor-General, we have no relationship with or

interests in Mighty River Power Limited or any of its subsidiaries.

Unqualified Opinion

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion:

• proper accounting records have been kept by Mighty River Power Limited and Group as far as appears from our

examination of those records; and

• the financial statements of Mighty River Power Limited and Group on pages 54 to 82:

- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

- give a true and fair view of:

- Mighty River Power Limited and Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2002; and

- the results of operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Our audit was completed on 28 August 2002 and our unqualified opinion is expressed as at that date.

G A Fulton

Ernst & Young

On behalf of the Auditor-General

Auckland, New Zealand

R E P O R T  O F  T H E  A U D I TO R - G E N E R A L
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E
F o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 0  J u n e  2 0 0 2

The notes set out on pages 59-82 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Sales 767,758 839,894 721,761 509,039

Less transmission, line and metering charges (182,153) (205,485) (182,153) 0

Interest income 3,157 4,245 10,601 34,391

Other revenue 6,346 8,076 6,395 5,672

Total Operating Revenue 2 595,108 646,730 556,604 549,102

Operating surplus before interest 
and non-recurring items 3 87,177 103,946 79,123 67,281

Interest income 3,157 4,245 10,601 34,391

Interest expense (29,815) (39,144) (29,925) (42,420)

Non-recurring items 4 6,772 7,660 (863) 3,292

Surplus Before Taxation 67,291 76,707 58,936 62,544

Taxation expense 5 20,208 17,647 19,469 18,245

Net Surplus After Taxation 6 47,083 59,060 39,467 44,299
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

S T A T E M E N T  O F  M O V E M E N T S  I N  E Q U I T Y
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The notes set out on pages 59-82 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Equity at Beginning of the Year 712,882 653,822 766,120 938,313

Net surplus after taxation 6 47,083 59,060 39,467 44,299

Movement in asset revaluation reserve 9 0 0 0 (215,863)

Total Recognised Revenues and
Expenses for the Year 47,083 59,060 39,467 (171,564)

Amalgamation of subsidiary 0 0 0 (18,319)

Transfer between group companies 0 0 0 17,690

Equity at End of the Year 759,965 712,882 805,587 766,120
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N
A s  a t  3 0  J u n e  2 0 0 2

The notes set out on pages 59-82 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Equity

Share capital 8 377,561 377,561 377,561 377,561

Reserves 9 382,404 335,321 428,026 388,559

759,965 712,882 805,587 766,120

Non-Current Liabilities

Energy contracts 133,766 155,834 133,766 155,834

Obligations assumed on acquisition 
of businesses 77 1,762 0 0

Loans 10 209,402 329,721 164,000 280,882

343,245 487,317 297,766 436,716

Current Liabilities

Payables and accruals 19 84,255 158,350 75,468 154,453

Provisions 20 3,191 3,453 3,191 3,453

Provision for taxation 0 20 0 870

Deferred taxation 16 21,251 13,875 14,987 7,720

Energy contracts – current portion 22,063 25,058 22,063 25,058

Loans – current portion 10 252,657 200,146 249,220 197,000

Obligations assumed on acquisition 
of businesses 1,685 12,337 0 0

385,102 413,239 364,929 388,554

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,488,312 1,613,438 1,468,282 1,591,390
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N  ( c o n t i n u e d )

A s  a t  3 0  J u n e  2 0 0 2

Chairman Deputy Chair

28 August 2002 28 August 2002

The notes set out on pages 59-82 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 11 1,355,059 1,387,171 1,246,138 1,275,227

Investments in subsidiaries 12 0 0 37,959 37,959

Other investments 14 7,119 11,000 7,119 11,000

Intangibles 15 8,712 9,836 0 0

Other non-current assets 3,487 5,855 3,000 3,951

Deferred taxation on obligations 
assumed on acquisition of businesses 16 7,665 10,924 7,114 8,942

1,382,042 1,424,786 1,301,330 1,337,079

Current Assets

Cash 3,275 5,400 588 2,924

Receivables and prepayments 17 99,410 178,251 163,312 246,386

Inventories 18 2,815 3,503 2,815 3,503

Provision for taxation 770 0 237 0

Energy contracts – current portion 0 1,498 0 1,498

106,270 188,652 166,952 254,311

Total Assets 1,488,312 1,613,438 1,468,282 1,591,390

For and on behalf of the board of directors, who authorised 

the issue of the financial statements on 28 August 2002
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MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2

S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
F o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 0  J u n e  2 0 0 2

The notes set out on pages 59-82 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Receipts from customers 659,457 589,919 614,454 466,637

Interest received 4,829 1,868 4,647 1,405

Payments to suppliers and employees (539,675) (430,333) (514,889) (377,535)

Interest paid (36,339) (47,955) (24,509) (25,950)

Taxation paid (10,400) (3,177) (10,400) (2,875)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating
Activities 21 77,872 110,322 69,303 61,682

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Sale of property, plant and equipment 820 3,477 820 230

Proceeds from investments 3,881 0 3,881 0

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,097) (13,499) (14,260) (2,460)

Purchase of other non-current assets 0 (1,302) 0 (1,000)

Purchase of joint ventures (300) 0 0 0

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (16,696) (11,324) (9,559) (3,230)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash was provided from (applied to):

Loans repaid (63,301) (78,557) (60,155) (75,732)

Loans to subsidiaries 0 0 (1,925) 36,676

Dividends paid 0 (20,600) 0 (20,600)

Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities (63,301) (99,157) (62,080) (59,656)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (2,125) (159) (2,336) (1,204)

Cash Balance at Beginning of the Year 5,400 5,559 2,924 855

Cash on Amalgamation of Subsidiary 0 0 0 3,273

Cash Balance at End of the Year 3,275 5,400 588 2,924



1. Statement of Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

Mighty River Power Limited is a company registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is a reporting entity

for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993.  The financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and comprise the following: significant accounting policies,

statements of financial performance, movements in equity, financial position and cash flows, as well as the

notes to these statements.

The Parent Company’s financial statements are for Mighty River Power Limited (the Company) and the

consolidated financial statements are for Mighty River Power Limited Group (the Group).  The consolidated

financial statements comprise Mighty River Power Limited (the Company), its subsidiaries and interests in

joint ventures.

Constitution, Ownership and Activities

Mighty River Power Limited is wholly owned by Her Majesty the Queen in Right of New Zealand (the Crown).

Consequently, Mighty River Power Limited is bound by the requirements of the State-Owned Enterprises 

Act 1986.

The liabilities of Mighty River Power Limited are not guaranteed in any way by the Crown. 

The Group’s principal activities are the generation, trading and retailing of energy.

On the acquisition of assets and liabilities from ECNZ, Mighty River Power Limited undertook a fair value

exercise as at 1 April 1999.  As a result, the fair value of assets and liabilities at 1 April 1999 is deemed to 

be their historical cost.

Measurement Base

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical cost with the exception of certain items 

for which specific accounting policies are identified, as noted below.

Specific Accounting Policies

The following specific accounting policies that materially affect the measurement of financial performance,

financial position and cash flows have been applied.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group holds a controlling interest in the equity.  Subsidiaries are

consolidated under the purchase method on a line-by-line basis.  All material inter-company transactions,

balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits arising from transactions between Group companies are

eliminated on consolidation.
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Joint Ventures

Joint ventures are joint arrangements with other parties in which the Company has several liability in respect

of costs and liabilities, and shares in any resulting output.  The Company’s share of the assets, liabilities,

revenues and expenses of joint ventures is incorporated into the Company and Group financial statements 

on a line-by-line basis.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.

Short-term investments comprise investments that mature or are otherwise realisable within not more than

twelve months from the date of purchase and are stated at cost, less unamortised premium or discount.

Acquisition or Disposal during the Year

Where an entity becomes or ceases to be a Group entity during the year, the results of that entity are

included in the net surplus of the Group from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets

acquired at the date of acquisition of an equity interest.  Goodwill is recognised as an asset and separately

disclosed.  Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of expected benefits.

Negative goodwill on acquisition of businesses is accounted for by reducing the fair values of the non-monetary

assets acquired.

Operating Revenue

Operating revenue recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance includes the amounts received and

receivable for energy and related energy services supplied to customers in the ordinary course of business.

Operating revenue is stated exclusive of:

• transmission costs paid to Transpower and distribution costs paid to lines companies as collected from 

customers, and

• goods and services tax collected from customers.

Operating revenue includes the value of units assessed as being recorded on meters as at balance date, 

but for which invoices have not yet been rendered.

Receivables

Receivables are stated at their estimated realisable value, after providing for debts where collection is

doubtful.  Bad debts are expensed during the period in which they are identified.

Taxation

The taxation expense charged to the Statement of Financial Performance includes both the current year’s

provision and the income tax effect of timing differences calculated using the liability method.
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Tax effect accounting is applied on a comprehensive basis to all timing differences.  A debit balance in the

deferred taxation account arising from timing differences or income tax benefits from income tax losses, 

is only recognised if there is virtual certainty of realisation.

Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates ruling at balance date.  Exchange

differences arising on translation are taken to the Statement of Financial Performance. Hedged foreign currency

assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange determined by the underlying hedge contracts.

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction

except where hedging contracts are taken out to cover short-term forward currency commitments, in which

case the transaction is translated at the forward rate specified in those contracts.

The assets and liabilities of independent foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates ruling at

balance date.  Revenue and expense items are translated at the spot rate at the transaction date or a rate

approximating that rate.  Exchange differences are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts which are not designated as hedges are valued at the

forward rate of exchange at balance date and the resulting surpluses and deficits are recognised in the

Statement of Financial Performance.

Debt

Debt as at 1 April 1999 was stated at fair value.  All subsequent debt is stated at face value.  Borrowing costs

such as origination, commitment and transaction fees are expensed as incurred.

The Company acquired a portfolio of debt from ECNZ on 1 April 1999 with various maturities, interest rates

and currencies.  Pursuant to a fair value assessment, the interest rates applying to this debt portfolio were

marked-to-market at 1 April 1999.  The resulting provision is being amortised on the basis of the difference

between market yield at 1 April 1999 and yield-to-maturity over the remaining term of the debt.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Owned Assets

The value of property, plant and equipment acquired on 1 April 1999 was adjusted to fair value.  This value is

deemed to be historical cost.

Property, plant and equipment disclosed in the notes to the financial statements at valuation is determined by

an independent valuer.  The basis of valuation is economic value less the estimated costs of disposal, 

on an existing use basis.  Any surplus on revaluation of a class of property, plant and equipment is transferred

directly to the asset revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in the

Statement of Financial Performance, in which case it is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

A deficit on revaluation of a class of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of Financial

Performance in the period it arises where it exceeds any surplus previously transferred to the asset

revaluation reserve.  Additions to property, plant and equipment stated at valuation subsequent to the most

recent valuation are recorded at cost.  Office land and buildings are revalued to net current value tri-annually.
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All other items of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost.

The cost of property, plant and equipment purchased comprises the consideration given to acquire the assets

plus other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary

for their intended service.

The cost of property, plant and equipment constructed by the Group, including capital work in progress,

includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour specifically associated and an

appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.  Financing costs attributable to a project are

capitalised at the Group’s specific project finance interest rate, where these meet certain time and monetary

materiality limits.  Costs cease to be capitalised as soon as an asset is ready for productive use.

Where appropriate, the cost of property, plant and equipment includes site preparation costs, installation

costs, unrecovered operating costs incurred during planned commissioning and the cost of obtaining 

resource consents.

Provision is made for any permanent impairment in the value of property, plant and equipment.

Where property, plant and equipment is disposed of, the surplus or deficit recognised in the Statement of

Financial Performance is calculated as the difference between the sale price and the carrying value of the

property, plant and equipment.

Leased Assets

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are

classified as finance leases and are capitalised.  The asset and corresponding liability are recorded at the

inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset, at amounts equivalent to the discounted present

value of minimum lease payments, including residual values.

Finance charges are apportioned over the terms of the respective leases.

The cost of improvements to leasehold property is capitalised and amortised over the estimated useful life 

of the improvements, or over the unexpired portion of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.

Operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and

accordingly are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than freehold 

land and capital work in progress, so as to write down the assets to their estimated residual value over their

expected useful lives. The annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Freehold buildings 1 – 2 %

Generation plant:

-  Hydro 2%

-  Geothermal 5 – 7%

-  Co-generation 7%

-  Landfill 10%

Meters 4 – 10%

Computer hardware and software 20 – 33%

Other plant and equipment 10 – 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Distinction between Capital and Revenue Expenditure

Capital expenditure is defined as all expenditure on the purchase or creation of a new asset, and any

expenditure that results in a significant improvement to the original functionality of an existing asset.

Revenue expenditure is defined as expenditure that restores an asset to its original operating capability 

and all expenditure incurred in maintaining and operating the business.

Insurance

The Group’s property, plant and equipment is predominantly concentrated at power station locations which

have the potential to sustain major losses through damage to plant and resultant consequential costs.

To minimise the financial impact of such exposures, the major portion of the assessed risk is transferred to

insurance companies by taking out insurance policies with appropriate counter parties. Any uninsured loss 

is expensed to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which the loss is incurred.

Rehabilitation Costs

Estimations are made for the expected cost of environmental rehabilitation of commercial sites that require

some level of reinstatement resulting from present operations.  Any liability is recognised when exposure is

identified and rehabilitation costs can be reasonably estimated.

Resource Consents

Costs incurred in obtaining a resource consent are capitalised and recognised as a non-current asset 

where they give rise to future economic benefit.  These costs are amortised over the life of the consent on 

a straight-line basis.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  Cost is determined on a weighted average

basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing

condition and location.

Employee Entitlements

A liability for annual leave is accrued and recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. The liability is stated

at the estimated value of future cash outflows resulting from employee services provided up to balance date.

Financial Instruments

Treasury

The Group has various financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk for the purpose of reducing its

exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.  

For interest rate swap agreements, the differential to be paid or received is accrued and is recognised as 

a component of interest expense or interest revenue over the life of the swap agreement.

Premiums paid on interest rate and currency options and the net settlement on maturity of forward rate

agreements, futures and options are amortised over the life of the underlying asset or liability protected 

by the instrument.

Financial instruments entered into with no corresponding underlying position are accounted for on a mark-to-

market basis and surpluses and deficits are taken to the Statement of Financial Performance as they accrue.

Energy Contracts

The Group has entered into a number of contracts to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on the

electricity spot market.  These contracts are in the form of power supply agreements, contracts for

difference, over-the-counter swaps and exchange traded futures.  They are not undertaken for speculative

purposes.  These energy contracts establish the price at which future specified quantities of electricity are

purchased, sold or otherwise exchanged.

Surpluses and deficits on energy contracts are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the

period incurred.

Pursuant to the fair value assessment of assets and liabilities acquired, a portfolio of energy contracts

existing at 1 April 1999 was marked-to-market using an expected price path for future wholesale electricity

prices determined by independent experts.  The resulting net present values of unrealised revenues and

expenses associated with these contracts have been recognised in the financial statements at balance date

and the provisions are amortised over the remaining terms of individual contracts based on the expected 

price path.
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Statement of Cash Flows

The following are the definitions of the terms used in the Statement of Cash Flows.

• Cash includes cash on hand and bank current accounts, net of bank overdrafts.

• Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition, holding and disposal of property, 

plant and equipment and of investments.  Investments can include securities not falling within the 

definition of cash.

• Financing activities are those activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the equity 

structure of the Group.  This includes both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash.  

Dividends paid in relation to equity structure are included in financing activities.

• Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are not investing or financing activities.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the period.
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Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

2. Operating Revenue

Operating revenue was derived from:

Continuing activities 594,152 646,730 555,648 549,102

Discontinued activities 956 0 956 0

595,108 646,730 556,604 549,102

3. Operating Surplus Before Interest 
and Non-Recurring Items

After charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of energy contracts (23,565) (24,052) (23,565) (24,052)

Net foreign currency exchange (gains)/losses (4,764) 4,920 (4,484) 4,986

Surplus on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment (284) (100) (284) (100)

Bad debts written off 7,075 3,597 7,075 0

Change in provision for doubtful debts (1,217) (229) (1,788) 0

Depreciation:

-  Buildings 4,979 5,013 4,472 4,531

-  Generation plant 32,607 32,633 23,830 23,915

-  Meters 3,343 2,678 3,343 0

-  Computer hardware and software 8,093 7,746 8,093 1,697

-  Other plant and equipment 2,122 2,404 2,031 1,085

-  Motor vehicles 142 154 142 122

Rental and operating lease costs 1,524 1,370 1,524 229

Directors’ fees 250 272 250 272

Donations 51 46 51 46

Fees paid to auditors for:

-  Auditing the financial statements 145 132 115 94

-  Other services (1) 21 (1) 21

Loss on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment 48 12 48 0

Amortisation of goodwill 1,124 1,122 0 0

Amortisation of other non-current assets 858 361 858 361
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2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

4. Non-Recurring Items

Capital receipt on exit of investment 0 4,673 0 4,673

Net gain (loss) on insurance claim (365) 3,101 0 0

Movement in obligations assumed on acquisition 8,000 3,000 0 0

Write down of property, plant and equipment 0 (3,896) 0 (1,400)

Loss on disposal of business (1,053) 0 (1,053) 0

Sale of computer software 0 650 0 0

Other 190 132 190 19

6,772 7,660 (863) 3,292

5. Taxation Expense

Surplus before taxation 67,291 76,707 58,936 62,544

Taxation at 33 cents 22,206 25,313 19,449 20,640

Taxation effect of permanent differences:

Amortisation of energy contracts (4,134) (4,891) (4,134) (4,891)

Other permanent differences 2,332 1,339 4,194 2,625

Prior year adjustments (196) (4,114) (40) (129)

Taxation Expense 20,208 17,647 19,469 18,245

Analysis of Taxation Expense

Current taxation 9,573 12,648 10,374 20,668

Deferred taxation 10,635 4,999 9,095 (2,423)

20,208 17,647 19,469 18,245

6. Net Surplus After Taxation

Net surplus after taxation was derived from:

Continuing activities 47,901 59,060 40,285 44,299

Discontinued activities (818) 0 (818) 0

47,083 59,060 39,467 44,299
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Parent

2002 2001

$000 $000

7. Imputation Credit Account

Balance at beginning of the year 11,135 18,102

Imputation credits attached to dividends paid during the year 0 (10,146)

Income tax payments during the year 10,410 3,179

Balance at end of the year 21,545 11,135

At balance date the imputation credits available to the shareholder were:

Through direct shareholding in the Company 21,489 10,828

Through indirect interests in subsidiaries 56 307

21,545 11,135

8. Share Capital

The share capital is represented by 377,561,000 ordinary shares issued and fully paid. All shares have equal

voting rights and share equally in dividends and surplus on winding up.

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

9. Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at beginning of the year 244,953 244,953 342,204 558,067

Revaluation during the year 0 0 0 (215,863)

Balance at end of the year 244,953 244,953 342,204 342,204

Retained Surplus

Balance at beginning of the year 90,368 31,308 46,355 2,685

Net surplus after taxation for the year 47,083 59,060 39,467 44,299

Amalgamation of subsidiary 0 0 0 (18,319)

Transfer between group companies 0 0 0 17,690

Balance at end of the year 137,451 90,368 85,822 46,355

382,404 335,321 428,026 388,559
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2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

10. Loans

Bank loans (secured) 48,839 51,985 0 0

Bank loans (unsecured) 148,000 8,000 148,000 8,000

Commercial paper 117,098 119,222 117,098 119,222

ECNZ Residual loans (unsecured) 148,122 350,660 148,122 350,660

462,059 529,867 413,220 477,882

Repayable as follows: Interest rate:

Within one year 2.0% to 7.6% 252,657 200,146 249,220 197,000

One to two years 5.8% to 6.7% 86,754 260,319 83,000 256,882

Two to five years 6.1% to 7.2% 78,458 20,326 65,000 8,000

Later than five years 7.3% to 8.0% 44,190 49,076 16,000 16,000

Total 462,059 529,867 413,220 477,882

Less current portion 252,657 200,146 249,220 197,000

Total term loans 209,402 329,721 164,000 280,882

The secured bank loans represent the Group’s share of the Southdown Co-generation joint venture non

recourse project finance facility.  The bank loans are secured by way of a deed of charge over the assets 

and business of the Southdown Co-generation joint venture.

The unsecured bank loans represent amounts drawn down at balance date on $275 million of revolving

advance facilities of which $100 million matures in October 2003, $100 million matures in March 2004 

and $75 million matures in October 2004.  These facilities carry floating interest rates which, at balance date,

ranged from 5.8% to 6.1%.

The commercial paper is provided liquidity support by a cash advances and standby facility made available 

by four syndicated banks.  The cash advances and standby facility expires in March 2003.  It is the Company’s

intention to continually re-new this facility for the foreseeable future.

The loans from ECNZ Residual include an amount of US$22,488,756.

A provision of $23.4 million was made as at 1 April 1999 as a fair value adjustment to recognise the above

market interest rates being incurred on certain tranches of the borrowings from ECNZ Residual. This provision

is being amortised over the life of the debt.  At balance date an amount of $1.8 million remains in obligations

assumed on acquisition.
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2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land 

At valuation 7,869 7,869 5,090 5,090

7,869 7,869 5,090 5,090

Freehold Buildings

At valuation 227,506 227,012 220,063 220,049

Accumulated depreciation (17,024) (11,841) (14,632) (10,179)

210,482 215,171 205,431 209,870

Generation Plant

At cost 24,107 4,200 20,421 0

Accumulated depreciation (2,350) (945) (1,200) 0

At valuation 1,148,932 1,167,636 1,022,138 1,041,790

Accumulated depreciation (114,167) (79,083) (76,014) (53,385)

1,056,522 1,091,808 965,345 988,405

Meters

At cost 47,472 47,561 47,472 48,325

Accumulated depreciation (11,112) (7,981) (11,112) (8,745)

36,360 39,580 36,360 39,580

Computer Hardware and Software

At cost 38,639 34,304 38,580 34,304

Accumulated depreciation (24,832) (17,602) (24,803) (17,602)

13,807 16,702 13,777 16,702

Other Plant and Equipment

At cost 11,698 11,865 11,168 11,293

Accumulated depreciation (6,133) (4,417) (5,973) (4,306)

5,565 7,448 5,195 6,987

Motor Vehicles

At cost 793 584 729 584

Accumulated depreciation (378) (330) (356) (330)

415 254 373 254

Capital Work in Progress

At cost 24,039 8,339 14,567 8,339

1,355,059 1,387,171 1,246,138 1,275,227

Property, plant and equipment shown at valuation were valued at net current value, being the lower of

economic value and depreciated replacement cost, by PriceWaterhouseCoopers (Chartered Accountants), 

as at 1 April 1999.  Revalued office land and buildings on hand at balance date are stated at their net current

value as determined by an independent valuer.
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Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

12. Investment in Subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries at cost 0 0 37,959 37,959

0 0 37,959 37,959

Significant subsidiaries comprise:

Company % Holding Principal Activities Balance Date

2002 2001

Energy Auckland Limited 100 N/A Non trading 30 June

First Electric Limited 100 100 Non trading 30 June

Mercury Energy Limited 100 100 Non trading 30 June

Mighty River Power Investments Limited 100 100 Investment holding 30 June

Mighty River Power (Rotokawa) Limited 100 100 Investment holding 30 June

Rotokawa Geothermal Limited 100 N/A Non trading 31 March

Rotokawa Generation Limited 100 100 Energy generation 30 June

Mighty River Power Southdown Limited 100 100 Investment holding 30 June

ECNZ International Limited 100 100 Investment holding 30 June

PT ECNZ Services Indonesia 100 100 Non trading 31 December
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13. Joint Ventures

The Company has interests in the following joint ventures:

Joint Venture % Holding Principal Activities Balance Date

2002 2001

Rosedale/Greenmount 77.3 77.2 Energy generation 30 June

Silverstream 93.0 46.5 Energy generation 30 June

Rotokawa 50.0 50.0 Energy generation 30 June

Southdown 50.0 50.0 Energy generation 30 June

The change in the Rosedale/Greenmount shareholding during the year arose as a consequence of

contractual arrangements entered into at the time the joint venture was set up.

The change in the Silverstream shareholding during the year arose as a consequence of the acquisition of an

additional 46.5% shareholding from one of the other joint venture partners.

The Group’s share of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities of joint ventures which have been

proportionately consolidated within the financial statements are as follows:

Group

2002 2001

$000 $000

Southdown

Share of revenue 32,323 28,577

Share of expenses 31,780 24,967

Current assets 11,711 6,016

Non-current assets 51,906 57,280

Share of assets 63,617 63,296

Current liabilities 11,026 5,596

Non-current liabilities 45,402 48,840

Share of liabilities 56,428 54,436

Rotokawa

Share of revenue 1,513 1,457

Share of expenses 1,406 1,351

Non-current assets 3,417 3,835

Share of assets 3,417 3,835

Current liabilities 92 2,484

Share of liabilities 92 2,484
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Group

2002 2001

$000 $000

13. Joint Ventures (continued)

Silverstream

Share of revenue 364 291

Share of expenses 366 210

Current assets 524 0

Non-current assets 1,415 936

Share of assets 1,939 936

Current liabilities 96 0

Share of liabilities 96 0

Rosedale/Greenmount

Share of revenue 2,328 2,249

Share of expenses 2,215 1,981

Ownership of and responsibility for the assets of Rosedale/Greenmount are retained by the party contributing

those assets.

The financial statements of Rosedale/Greenmount are unaudited.

Acquisition of Additional Interest in Silverstream

On 28 February 2002 the Group acquired an additional 46.5% interest in the Silverstream joint venture.

Details of the acquisition are as follows:

$000 $000

Net assets acquired:

Cash and short term investments 350

Other current assets 31

Property, plant and equipment 973

Current liabilities (12) 1,342

Discount on acquisition (692)

Cash paid 650
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2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

14. Other Investments

Advances to Tuaropaki Power Company Limited 7,119 11,000 7,119 11,000

7,119 11,000 7,119 11,000

15. Intangibles

Goodwill

Cost 11,242 11,242 0 0

Accumulated amortisation (2,530) (1,406) 0 0

8,712 9,836 0 0

16. Deferred Taxation

Balance at beginning of the year (2,951) 2,048 1,222 (4,104)

Movements during the year:

Timing differences (10,375) (4,858) (9,088) 2,440

Amalgamation of subsidiary 0 0 0 5,261

Transfer between group companies 0 0 0 (2,358)

Prior year adjustments (260) (141) (7) (17)

Balance at end of the year (13,586) (2,951) (7,873) 1,222

Comprising:

Deferred taxation obligations assumed
on acquisition of businesses 7,665 10,924 7,114 8,942

Deferred taxation (21,251) (13,875) (14,987) (7,720)

(13,586) (2,951) (7,873) 1,222

Deferred taxation obligations assumed on acquisition of business comprise the taxation effect of a provision

for excess interest on the acquired debt portfolio and the write down of assets.  A further deferred taxation

debit balance of $26.4 million arising on certain fair value adjustments has not been recognised as there is

not virtual certainty of recovery.
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2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

17. Receivables and Prepayments

Subsidiaries 0 0 73,887 73,049

Trade receivables 87,641 167,223 82,706 162,309

Sundry receivables 9,672 6,502 4,622 6,502

Prepayments 2,097 4,526 2,097 4,526

99,410 178,251 163,312 246,386

18. Inventories

Consumable stores 2,253 2,139 2,253 2,139

Finished goods 562 1,364 562 1,364

2,815 3,503 2,815 3,503

19. Payables and Accruals

Trade payables 70,336 134,534 66,230 130,647

Employee entitlements 923 1,040 923 1,040

Sundry creditors 12,996 22,776 8,315 22,766

84,255 158,350 75,468 154,453

20. Provisions

Provision for Prompt Payment Discounts

Balance at beginning of the year 3,453 6,008 3,453 0

Movements during the year (262) (2,555) (262) 3,453

Balance at end of the year 3,191 3,453 3,191 3,453

Provision for prompt payment discounts represents the prompt payment discount allowed for electricity retail

customers.  The discount is utilised when outstanding accounts are paid by the due date as specified on the

monthly electricity invoice.  The level of discount provided for is assessed on an ongoing basis.
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Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

21. Reconciliation of Net Surplus After 
Taxation with  Net Cash Flows From 
Operating Activities

Net Surplus After Taxation 47,083 59,060 39,467 44,299

Add (less) non-cash items:

Depreciation 51,286 50,628 41,911 31,350

Amortisation of energy contracts (23,565) (24,052) (23,565) (24,052)

Amortisation of goodwill 1,124 1,122 0 0

Amortisation of other non-current assets 858 361 858 361

Movement in obligations assumed 
on acquisition of businesses (12,337) (10,972) 0 0

Foreign exchange (gains) losses on USD loan (4,507) 4,990 (4,507) 4,990

Write down of property, plant and equipment 0 3,896 0 1,400

Other non-cash items 1,384 (3,741) 618 (116)

14,243 22,232 15,315 13,933

Add (less) movements in working capital:

Decrease (increase) in receivables 
and prepayments 78,841 (54,121) 83,074 (99,570)

Decrease (increase) in inventories 688 (448) 688 (1,793)

(Decrease) increase in payables and accruals (74,357) 71,017 (79,247) 136,398

(Decrease) increase in provision for taxation (790) 8,409 (1,107) 4,649

(Decrease) increase in deferred taxation 10,635 4,999 9,095 (5,326)

15,017 29,856 12,503 34,358

Add (less) items classified as investing activities:

Working capital acquired with purchase 
of joint ventures 19 0 0 0

Transfers between group companies 0 0 1,925 27,488

Working capital acquired on amalgamation 
of subsidiary 0 0 0 (59,172)

Movement in other non-current assets 1,510 (826) 93 776

1,529 (826) 2,018 (30,908)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 77,872 110,322 69,303 61,682
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Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

22. Commitments

Capital Commitments

Commitments for future capital expenditure are:

Within one year 13,000 5,212 8,334 5,212

Operating Lease Commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases are:

Within one year 1,447 1,411 1,447 1,411

One to two years 1,134 1,238 1,134 1,238

Two to five years 3,178 2,926 3,178 2,926

Later than five years 1,740 2,438 1,740 2,438

7,499 8,013 7,499 8,013

23. Contingencies

Mighty River Power Limited and certain of its subsidiaries have cross-guaranteed the due and punctual

payment of each other’s Guaranteed Indebtedness in relation to bank borrowings under a Standby and Cash

Advances Facility and a Revolving Advances Facility.

Mighty River Power Limited has guaranteed payment obligations of $20.0 million pursuant to a letter of

credit provided by a bank in favour of M-Co.

Mighty River Power Limited has also guaranteed payment obligations of US$1.9 million pursuant to a letter 

of credit provided by a bank in favour of Ormat Industries Limited.

Mighty River Power Limited has a contingent liability in respect of the Accident Compensation Corporation’s

residual claims levy.  The levy is payable annually from May 1999 for up to fifteen years.  The Group’s future

liability is a function of the Accident Compensation Corporation’s unfunded liability for past claims and future

payments to employees.

24. Resource Consents

Mighty River Power Limited requires land, water and air consents, obtained under the Resource

Management Act 1991 (the Act), to enable it to operate its geothermal, thermal and hydro power stations.

The duration of consents under the Act is for a maximum of 35 years.  The current resource consents within

which the hydro power stations operate nominally expired on 1 October 2001 but remain in effect until such

time as the Company’s applications for new consents are heard and determined.  The consenting authority

(Waikato Regional Council) has scheduled the application hearing to commence in November 2002.

25. Segment Information

Mighty River Power Limited operates predominantly in one segment, being the generation and marketing of

electricity in New Zealand.
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26. Financial Instruments

Revenue Risk – Energy Contracts

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, enters into energy contracts that establish a fixed price at

which future specified quantities of electricity are purchased, sold or otherwise exchanged.  The Group’s

exposure to spot electricity prices is limited by a Board approved Wholesale Electricity Trading Risk

Management Policy. 

On maturity of the energy contracts, any difference between the hedge price and the spot market price is

settled between the parties.  Settlement occurs irrespective of the amount of electricity actually supplied 

or consumed.

Credit Risk

To the extent that Mighty River Power Limited has a receivable from another party, there is a credit risk in

the event of non-performance by that counter party.  Financial instruments which potentially subject the

Group to credit risk principally consist of bank balances, receivables, investments, foreign currency options

and interest rate swaps.

Mighty River Power Limited manages its exposure to credit risk.

The Group performs credit evaluations on all electricity customers and normally requires a bond from

customers who have yet to establish a suitable credit history with Mighty River Power Limited.

The Group monitors the credit quality of the major financial institutions that are counter parties to its 

off balance sheet financial instruments and does not anticipate non-performance by the counter parties.

With respect to energy contracts, the Group has a potential credit risk exposure to the counter party

dependent on the spot market price at settlement, and does not anticipate any non-performance of any

obligations which may exist on maturity of these contracts.  Credit risk in relation to these counter-parties 

is managed in accordance with a Board approved Wholesale Electricity Trading Risk Management Policy.

Maximum exposures to credit risk at balance date are:

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

Bank balances 3,275 5,400 588 2,924

Receivables 94,528 169,955 84,543 165,041

Investments 7,119 11,000 7,119 11,000

Interest rate swaps 1,834 1,880 1,834 1,880

Foreign exchange options 0 1,032 0 1,032

The above maximum exposures are net of any recognised provision for losses on these financial instruments.

Collateral in the form of customer bonds totalling $1.4 million is held in respect of the above amounts.
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Concentrations of credit risk

Included in receivables are the following balances:

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

M-Co 15,221 65,765 15,221 65,765

QBE Insurance (International) Limited 5,050 0 0 0

The Group does not have any other significant concentrations of credit risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Mighty River Power Limited has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated 

in foreign currencies and a loan denominated in US dollars totalling $22,488,756.  The Group uses foreign

currency forward exchange contracts to manage these exposures which are 100% hedged at balance date. 

At balance date the principal or contract amounts of foreign currency forward exchange contracts are:

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 58,327 0 53,691 0

Foreign currency options 0 53,023 0 53,023

At balance date the Group also has US funds of $9,305 in a US dollar bank account that is not hedged.

Interest Rate Risk

Mighty River Power Limited has exposure to interest rate risk to the extent that it borrows for a fixed term at

floating interest rates.  The Group manages its cost of borrowing by placing limits on the proportion of

floating to fixed rate borrowings.

The Group uses interest rate swaps and interest rate options to manage interest rate risk.

At balance date the principal or contract amounts of interest rate swaps and interest rate options 

outstanding are:

Group Parent

2002 2001 2002 2001

$000 $000 $000 $000

Interest rate swaps 255,000 320,000 220,000 275,000

Interest rate options 82,500 25,000 75,000 25,000
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Repricing Analysis

The following tables identify the periods in which repriced financial instruments are subject to interest rate

risk. The overall effective interest rate incorporates the effect of the relevant derivative contracts.

Effective Total Within One One to Two Two to Five Later than 

Interest Rate Year Years Years Five Years

Group 2002 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets

Cash 5.4% 3,275 3,275 0 0 0

Investments 18.0% 7,119 0 0 0 7,119

Total Assets 10,394 3,275 0 0 7,119

Less Liabilities

Bank loans (unsecured) 6.0% 148,000 0 83,000 65,000 0

Bank loans (secured) 7.2% 48,839 3,437 3,754 13,458 28,190

Commercial paper 6.0% 117,098 117,098 0 0 0

ECNZ Residual loans 5.2% 148,122 132,122 0 0 16,000

Total Liabilities 462,059 252,657 86,754 78,458 44,190

Off Balance Sheet

Interest rate swaps 255,000 10,000 85,000 65,000 95,000

Interest rate options 82,500 32,500 25,000 25,000 0

Repricing Profile (114,165) (206,882) 23,246 11,542 57,929

Effective Total Within One One to Two Two to Five Later than 

Interest Rate Year Years Years Five Years

Group 2001 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Assets

Cash 5.4% 5,400 5,400 0 0 0

Investments 18.0% 11,000 0 0 0 11,000

Total Assets 16,400 5,400 0 0 11,000

Less Liabilities

Bank loans (unsecured) 6.1% 8,000 0 0 8,000 0

Bank loans (secured) 7.7% 51,985 3,146 3,437 12,326 33,076

Commercial paper 5.9% 119,222 0 119,222 0 0

ECNZ Residual loans 8.4% 350,660 197,000 137,660 0 16,000

Total Liabilities 529,867 200,146 260,319 20,326 49,076

Off Balance Sheet

Interest rate swaps 320,000 105,000 10,000 90,000 115,000

Repricing Profile (193,467) (89,746) (250,319) 69,674 76,924
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair Values

The estimated fair values of financial instruments that differ from carrying values are as follows:

Group and Parent Group and Parent

2002 2001

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

$000 $000 $000 $000

Interest rate swaps 1,834 691 1,880 1,720

Interest rate options 575 415 0 0

Foreign currency options 0 0 1,032 1,032

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts (1,887) (2,644) 0 0

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of

financial instrument:

Bank balances, receivables, payables, loans, investments

The carrying amount is the fair value for each of these classes of financial instrument and accordingly 

they are excluded from the table above.

Foreign currency options and foreign currency forward exchange contracts

The fair value of these classes of financial instruments is based on the quoted market price of 

comparable instruments.

Interest rate swaps and interest rate options

The fair value of these classes of financial instruments is the current market valuation provided by 

the Group’s bankers.

Energy contracts

The fair value of energy price hedge contracts varies in accordance with the market price for electricity.

As at balance date, the face value of energy contracts amounted to $2,270.2 million with terms of up 

to 12 years.

The carrying value of energy contracts in the financial statements of $155.8 million represents the value 

of the contracts acquired by the Group on 1 April 1999, as valued by PriceWaterhouseCoopers, less the

amortisation credited to the Statement of Financial Performance since the date of acquisition.
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27. Related Party Transactions

During the year the Company entered into the following transactions with subsidiaries:

2002 2001

$000 $000

Management fees charged to subsidiaries / joint ventures 1,512 2,930

Advances to subsidiaries 73,887 73,049

Advances are interest free and repayable on demand with the exception of Mighty River Power Investments

Limited with regard to advances in Mighty River Power (Rotokawa) Limited.

Mighty River Power Limited uses the services of a number of law firms including Simpson Grierson.  Carole

Durbin, a director and deputy chair, is a partner in the law firm Simpson Grierson.  Other partners and staff 

of that firm have rendered various legal services to the Group in the ordinary course of business on normal

commercial terms.  The Company has incurred expenditure for the period of $107,841 (2001: $212,004) with

Simpson Grierson with related amounts payable at balance date of $30,954 (2001: $3,671).

Michael Kedian, a director of the subsidiaries ECNZ International Limited and PT ECNZ Services is also 

a director of Tuaropaki Power Company Limited and Dam Watch Services Limited.  The Company has the

following transactions and balances with these entities:

Tuaropaki Power Company Limited:

Revenue under the Mokai operations and maintenance contract of $2,023,384 (2001: $1,650,706) and related

amounts receivable at balance date of $280,070 (2001: $294,160).  

Dam Watch Services Limited:

Monitoring services expense for the period of $2,463,316 (2001: $765,475) and related amounts payable 

at balance date of nil (2001:nil).

Directors and employees of the Group deal with Mighty River Power Limited as electricity consumers 

on normal terms and conditions within the ordinary course of trading activities.

No related party debts have been written off or forgiven during the year. 

The ultimate shareholder of Mighty River Power Limited is the Crown.  All transactions with the Crown 

and other State Owned Enterprises are at arm’s length, and it is considered that these do not fall within 

the intended scope of related party disclosures. 

28. Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to balance date that would affect the fair presentation of these

financial statements.
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SHAREHOLDERS
In accordance with the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 (the Act), the company has two shareholders: 

The Minister of State-Owned Enterprises (Hon. Mark Burton) and the Minister of Finance (Hon. Dr.

Michael Cullen).

Section 15 of the Act requires that an annual report is submitted to the shareholding ministers, and that

it contains sufficient information to enable an informed assessment to be made of the operations of the

group.  The group will provide any other information requested by the shareholding ministers pursuant

to Section 18 of the Act.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the group are:

• generation of electricity including operation and maintenance of generating plant and management 

of  hydro and geothermal reservoirs

• energy trading and risk management

• retailing of energy to customers including marketing of value added products and measurement 

of energy sales.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
A full set of financial statements of Mighty River Power Limited and the group for the 12 month period to

30 June 2002 is included on pages 54 to 82 of this report.  These statements include details of the group’s

accounting policies on pages 59 to 65.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The following table sets out the total remuneration and other benefits received by each board member as

a director of Mighty River Power Limited for the reporting period.

Name Total Received (excluding GST)  

Rob Challinor $62,000  

Carole Durbin $38,000

Ian Fraser $31,000

Sandy Maier $5,167

David McConnell $31,000

Tania Simpson $20,666

Wayne Walden  $31,000

Hilary Webber $31,000

The shareholding ministers advise the board of the annual total fee to be allocated between the directors.

None of the directors of Mighty River Power Limited received any fees as director of any subsidiary

company of Mighty River Power Limited.

DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS
The general disclosures of interest made by the directors of Mighty River Power Limited pursuant to Section

140 (2) of the Companies Act 1993 are shown on the next page.  There were no declarations of interests made

pursuant to Section 140 (1) of the Companies Act 1993 that were entered in the interests register of Mighty

River Power Limited or its subsidiaries for the reporting period.  No director of Mighty River Power

Limited is a shareholder of Mighty River Power Limited or any of its subsidiaries.

S TAT U TO R Y  I N FO R M AT I O N
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Declaration of General Interest Pursuant to Section 140 (2) of the Companies Act 1993 
as at 28 August 2002

Rob Challinor Northington Partners Limited: Director and Shareholder

L.E.K. Consulting Pty Limited: Australasian Advisory Board Member

Sheffield Limited: Chairman

Copthorne Waitangi Resort: Joint Venture Committee Member

The Warehouse Group Limited: Director

Ports of Auckland Limited: Director  

Carole Durbin Simpson Grierson: Partner

Earthquake Commission: Commissioner  

Ian Fraser Beca Group ( Ltd): Executive Director  

David McConnell McConnell International Limited: Joint Managing Director

McConnell International Property Limited: Director

Steelpipe New Zealand Limited: Director

Bisleys Environmental Limited: Director

Hawkins Construction Limited: Director

HGM Group Limited: Director

Competitive Auckland:  Trustee

Counties Manukau Pacific Trust: Trustee  

Sandy Maier Maier Incorporated: Director

Caribbean Equity Fund: Investment Committee Chairman

Equitable Group of Companies: Director

Intellipole LLC: Director

Intelligent Optical Systems Japan, KK: Director

McConnell International Property Limited:  Director

New Plymouth Equity Advisors Limited: Director

Porter Novelli Investor Relations Advisory Board: Director

Tania Simpson Conflict Management Pacific Limited: Director

Kowhai Consulting Limited: Director

Medical Laboratory Technologists: Board Member

Te Kura Kaupapa Maori o Oparure: Board of Trustees Member  

Wayne Walden  Agritech Investments Limited: Director

Arcos Investments Limited: Director

Covita Limited: Director

Meat New Zealand: Director

Meat and Wool Innovation Limited: Director

Project K: Chairman

TranzRail Limited: Chairman  

Hilary Webber Ag Research: Director  

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 2
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INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
Mighty River Power Limited has resolved to indemnify directors and employees for any costs or liabilities

referred to in Section 162 (3) and (4) of the Companies Act 1993.  The company has arranged insurance

for those directors and employees in respect of any liability or costs referred to in 

Section 162 (5) of the Companies Act 1993.

COMPANY CREDIT RATING
As at 30 June 2002, the company had the following credit rating:

Standard & Poor’s     Short Term:  A-2 Long Term: B B B

LOANS TO DIRECTORS
There were no loans by the group to directors.

DIRECTORS’  USE OF INFORMATION
There were no notices from directors of the group requesting to use company information received 

in their capacity as directors which would not otherwise have been available to them.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance since the end of the period that has significantly

or may significantly affect the operations of the group.

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION
During the reporting year, the number of employees (including former employees) of Mighty River

Power Limited and its subsidiaries, not being directors, who received remuneration and other benefits

in excess of  $100,000 are:

Remuneration Bands  Number of Employees 

$100,001 - $110,000 5

$110,001 - $120,000 8

$120,001 - $130,000 5

$130,001 - $140,000 3

$140,001 - $150,000 2

$150,001 - $160,000 3

Remuneration Bands  Number of Employees 

$170,001 - $180,000 1

$190,001 - $200,000 1

$220,001 - $230,000 1

$230,001 - $240,000 1

$240,001 - $250,000 1

$280,001 - $290,000 1

$519,001 - $520.000 1

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
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The above remuneration includes retirement and redundancy entitlements. 

ANNUAL REPORT CERTIFICATE
This annual report is dated 28 August 2002  and is signed on behalf of the board by

RL Challinor

Chairman

CB Durbin

Deputy Chair
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DIRECTORS:  
Rob Challinor, BCom, FCA, CMA, FCIS (Chairman)

Carole  Durbin, BCom, LLB (Hons) FAMINZ, A.C.I. Arb. (Deputy Chair)

Ian  Fraser, BE (Hons), FIPENZ

Sandy Maier, JD, BA

David  McConnell, BE (Hons), MBA

Tania Simpson, BA, MMM

Wayne Walden

Hilary Webber, MPP, B.Soc.Sci

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Doug Heffernan, BE (Hons), ME, PhD, MIPENZ (Chief Executive)

Colleen Cann, (Organisation Development Manager)

Tim Densem, NZIM, BE (Elec.) (Hons), PhD (General Manager Generation Assets)

John Foote, BSc, BE (Civil) (General Manager Retail)

Tony Gray, FCA (Chief Financial Officer)

Mike Kedian, BE, ME, MBA (General Manager Generation Resources)

Stuart Lush, BE (Hons), MIPENZ (General Manager Generation Development)

William Meek, BCom (Hons) (Enterprise Risk Strategist)

James Moulder, BA, BCA (General Manager Trading)

David Reeve, NZCE (Industry Strategy Manager)

Bruce Waters, BA, LLB (Legal Counsel & Corporate Affairs)

MIGHTY RIVER POWER
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AUDITOR
The Controller & Auditor-General pursuant to

section 29 of the Public Finance Act 1977.  Mr G.A.

Fulton of Ernst & Young was appointed in May 1999

to perform the audit on behalf of the Controller and

Auditor-General.

SOLICITORS
Bell Gully (Auckland and Wellington)

Chapman Tripp (Auckland and Wellington)

Cowper Campbell (Auckland)

Simpson Grierson (Auckland and Wellington)

BANKERS
ASB Bank

Bank of New Zealand

Citibank

Deutsche Bank

National Bank of New Zealand

WestpacTrust

REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 9 KPMG Legal Building

22 Fanshawe Street

Auckland

Telephone: 09 308 8200

Facsimile: 09 308 8209

Email: enquiries@mightyriver.co.nz

Website: www.mightyriverpower.co.nz
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